





Annual Report 2005

Annual Report 2005

Department of Mechanical Engineering Nils Koppels Allé DTU - Building 403 DK-2800 Kgs. Lyngby Denmark

T: +45 45 25 19 60 W: www.mek.dtu.dk E: Info@mek.dtu.dk

Front page: Photo by Bo Jarner

Contents

Preface - MEK 2005	2
Feature Articles:	3
Risk Analysis of the Navigational Safety	4
Indoor Environmental Quality Affects the Performance of Schoolwork	
by Children	9
Profitable Sales, Development and Production of Customer Specific	-
Products	11
Major Research Activities	15
Solid Mechanics Section (FAM)	16
Coastal, Maritime and Structural Engineering Section (SKK)	22
Indoor Environment Section (IK)	31
Fluid Mechanics Section (FM)	36
Energy Engineering Section (ET)	40
Engineering Design Section (K&P)	44
Teaching Programme	51
Administration	55
Awards	58
Staff	60
Publications	63
Academic dissertations	63
Articles in journals – ISI indexed	63
Articles in journals - not ISI indexed	69
Articles in international conference proceedings without referee	84
Books	87
Chapters in books	87



Preface - MEK 2005

The year 2005 was a successful and busy year for the Department of Mechanical Engineering (MEK) at DTU. A major occurrence was the establishment of an Advisory Group consisting of high level representatives from leading companies.

Several researchers at MEK received prestigious international awards for their work in 2005. We achieved our targets for general performance parameters such as number of students, student satisfaction, number of journal publications, number of citations etc.

To determine if our targets were set at the highest possible levels, we compared the number and impact of our publications with related figures from leading university departments of mechanical engineering in Europe. The comparison confirmed that our achievements are of international standard.

The main objective of MEK is to conduct teaching and research in mechanics, energy systems and design tools. The Department is responsible for essential parts of the B.Sc. and M.Sc. programs in Mechanical Engineering, Civil Engineering, and Design and Innovation at DTU.

The Department of Mechanical Engineering covers the fundamental engineering disciplines within the fields of mechanics, including mechanical properties of materials, strength and vibration analyses of structures, thermodynamics, fluid mechanics, hydraulics, hydrodynamics, safety theory, and control engineering.

Our energy research is centred on efficient exploitation of renewable energy resources such as biomass, wind and waves. Other important areas are efficient energy transformation in combustion engines, energy transport, and energy consumption including refrigeration and



indoor environment optimization.

Within the design and product development areas MEK develops procedures for design of industrial products ensuring safety, economical viability, environmental impact, aesthetics and durability are taken into account. MEK attaches great importance to integrated product development and the development of design principles for land-based and marine structures.

This publication highlights some of the achievements at MEK during our fifth year of existence.

Preben Terndrup Pedersen

Head of Department

Feature Articles:

Risk Analysis of the Navigational Safety

Indoor Environmental Quality Affects the Performance of Schoolwork by Children

Profitable Sales, Development and Production of Customer Specific Products





Supply (



Risk Analysis of the Navigational Safety

Pollution of the marine

environment caused by oil or chemical spillage from ships is always subject to considerable public attention. Often the incidents imply significant socio-economic losses as a consequence of loss of fishery, loss of tourism, loss of wild life and flora, loss for the immediately affected persons, and general loss of unspoilt natural environments. It is evident that any society strives to limit the impact of these losses on the affected communities as much as possible within the economical boundaries. This is done partly by reducing the frequency of the occurrence of the marine in-cidents and partly by limiting the consequences when the unwanted event has ocurred.

The best and most economic safety initiatives are those which provides the greatest loss reduction compared with the monetary expenditure. To identify these initiatives maritime authorities use risk analysis. By risk is understood the expected loss over time. Thus the evaluation of risks requires the assessment of both the frequency with which unwanted events occur and the assessment of the resulting consequences from the unwanted event. Defining risk as the expected loss allows the risk analysis to become an integrated part of the economic decision analysis that balances expenditures and benefit, thus allowing owner and community to evaluate the economical trade-off by investing in safety directly.

Undoubtedly, the navigational risk will change in the future: the composition of traffic and the number of vessels are likely increase and hence, everything else equal, increase the frequency of unwanted events; navigational equipment will improve and hence lower the frequency. Other important factors are: size and speed of vessels, condition of buoyage, and conditions of ships (single hull vs. double hull tankers). It is not obvious in which direction the

resulting future navigational risk exposure will develop. It is therefore important that local navigational and maritime authorities carefully perform risk analyses be-fore deciding which new navigational safety initiatives to employ.

History of maritime safety

Sailing in an often hostile marine environment has alwavs been a risky activity for mankind. Today the vast majority of all transport of goods is done by ship, and the volume of goods which goes on a single ship is very large. It is obvious that, when marine incidents occur, the consequences which follow may also be significant. Although the public in general acknowledges the importance of the shipping, the perception of the marine industry is highly affected by the infrequent but very tragic casualties, which sometimes occur. This has resulted in the public perception that the marine industry over time

Ships actual losses (all causes)

(propelled sea-going merchant ships of ≥ 100 GT)





has become more risky. However, statistics clearly shows that over the past two decades the marine industry has reduced the number of incidents.

From Figure 1, combining the loss rate per 1000 ships with the increase in number of vessels, the total number of lost vessels worldwide has decreased by 58%. This reduction can partly be attributed to improvements in navigational equipment, better training of crew, improved standards of ships and their manoeuvrability, improved layout and marking of routes.

Similarly, Figures 2 and 3 shows that both the number of registered oil spills and the amount of oil spilled have decreased over the past three decades. Although the recent *Erika* and *Prestige* incidents have gained considerable exposure in the media, the intensity of the public outcry does not reflect the seriousness of the incident measured relatively to previous oil spills.



Figure 2. Number of oil spills over 700 tonnes (ITOPF: www.itopf.com).



Figure 3. Amount of oil spilled as a function of time (ITOPF: www.itopf.com).



Figure 4. Routes in Danish Waters. Taken from the Royal Danish Administration of Navigation and Hydrography's AIS-server. Source: GateHouse.

Applying risk analysis

To perform an analysis of the risk related to ship-ship collisions and grounding requires a calculation of 1) the frequency of occurrence of collision or grounding and 2) the resulting con-sequences following these events. The former requires modelling of:

- routes
- distribution on ship routes
- grounds
- the captain's failures of reacting in time

The calculation of the consequences requires calculation of:

- structural damage • following ship-ship collision or grounding
- oil outflow, for example Based on one day of
- cost of oil spill or other consequences

Presently the majority of ships are equipped with AIS (Automatic Identraffic composition and tification System). For the Danish waters, the Royal types operating on the Danish Administration of Navigation and Hydrograph gather these signals and store them in a database.

These data are valuable for understanding more precisely how the vessels are sailing in a given area and what the traffic composition actually is. registered AIS data Figure 4 presents an intensity plot of the number vessels in Danish waters.

As an illustration the collision frequency involving oil tankers operating in the Great Belt has been calculated on the basis of year 2000. All main routes and crossing traffic have

been modelled. The first objective is to calculate the risk related to oil spill for the Great Belt. This is done by calculations in the GRACAT simulation computer program (GRounding And Collision Analysis Toolbox, http:// www.skk.mek.dtu.dk/ Software/GRACAT.aspx).

developed at the Technical University of Denmark from 1998 to 2001. The software con-sists of a frequency analysis module, a dama-ge analysis module, a consequence analysis module and a risk mitigation module. In the risk mitigation module, risk profiles for the calculated consequences can be calculated.

The probability of a col-lision between an oil tanker and one of the vessels operating in the route area and the probability distribution of the oil outflow is calculated by a Monte Carlo simulation procedure. At each collision the energy available for crushing the structure is calculated and the size of the resulting

structural damage is obtained. It is assumed that a damaged compartment leaks all its oil into the sea if the damage extends below the water line. If the damage is only above the water line, only the oil above the lower edge of the hole is leaked.

Collision probabilities and associated oil outflow distributions are calculated for operations in the Great Belt. Thereafter the distribution for the total oil spill is obtained by weighing the oil spills from the individual vessels with their frequency of travelling in the area. The calculations tank configuration in the show that a collision in the Great Belt is estimated to occur once per 59 years and the probability of fracture is estimated to 0.93. Not all collisions will result in fracture, and fewer will result in an oil spill. The fleet of tankers consists of a mixture between single and double hull tankers (first row of the table), only single hull tankers (second row) and only double hull tankers (third row).

It is seen that the move from single hull to double hull structures reduces the frequency of having oil spill from one per 84 years to one per 190 years. It is also seen that the expected spill increases. This is due to the changed tank configuration of small and large sized oil tankers. A small single hull tanker will typically have a central bulkhead. whereas its double hull counterpart will not. For large tankers it is similarly seen that the two-tank across in the double hull tanker replaces a threesingle hull. For midrange tankers there is a general tendency of the double hull tanker having smaller tanks than its single hull counterpart.

Hull	P[Spill]	Frequency	E[Volume	E[Cost	Annual risk
structure		spill	Spill]	Spill]	
Single and	0.54	109 y	4971 m3	56 M€	0.5M€
double		-			
Single	0.70	84 y	4233 m ³	51 M€	0.6 M€
Double	0.31	190 y	7302 m ³	76 M€	0.4M€



Indoor Environmental Quality Affects the Performance of Schoolwork by Children

Poor indoor environmental quality

(IEQ) in office buildings can reduce the performance of office work by adults. While it is well documented that IEQ in schools is both inadequate and frequently much worse than in office buildings, there is little direct evidence that classroom performance is being negatively affected. Inadequate ventilation is one of the most common problems identified in schools, causing increased levels of carbon dioxide and other pollutants, and reducing indoor air quality. There is often no

adequate temperature control in classrooms, which especially in warm seasons may result in increased temperatures. New research results from the studies carried out at the International Centre for Indoor Environment and Energy show that reducing classroom temperatures and increasing outside air supply rate improve the performance of schoolwork by children [107, 115, 147, 151, 167, 197, 205, 206, 215, 216, 217].

In these studies five independent field intervention experiments

were carried out in six identical classrooms in an elementary school in Denmark (Fig. 1). In three experiments carried out in late summer and in winter, the outdoor air supply rate per child was increased from about 3 L/s to 10 L/s, while in two experiments carried out in late summer the temperature was reduced from about 25°C to 20°C. The outdoor air supply rate was increased using the existing mechanical ventilation system while temperature was reduced by either operating or idling split cooling units





installed in the classrooms. For each condition. tasks representing up to eight different aspects of schoolwork, from reading to mathematics. were performed by 10 to 12vear-old children. The tasks were selected so that that errors and rate of they could have been a natural part of an ordinary school day. The tasks were presented to children by their teachers. Both teachers and pupils were blind to the interventions. No changes to the lesson plan or normal school activities at school were made, so as to ensure that the teaching environment and daily routines remained as normal as possible.

The results of the experiments show that an increased outdoor air supply rate and reduced air

temperatures significantly improved the performance of many tasks, mainly in terms of how quickly each pupil worked, but also for some tasks in terms of how many mistakes were made. It is clear work are being negatively affected by poor air quality and raised classroom air temperatures. The results show that doubling the outdoor air supply rate improved the performance of schoolwork by about 14.5% (Fig. 2), while reducing classroom air temperature by 1°C improved performance by about 3.5%.

The present studies indicate that improving indoor efforts to conserve energy air quality in classrooms by increasing the outdoor air supply rate, and reducing

classroom temperatures in hot weather by cooling, can substantially improve the performance of a wide range of tasks characteristic of schoolwork. from rulebased logical and mathematical tasks requiring concentration and logical thinking to language-based tasks requiring concentration and comprehension. The present results clearly demonstrate that air quality and temperatures in classrooms are very important factors in the learning process and should, together with teaching materials and methods, be an urgent educational priority. In and money over the past decades, the possibly negative effects of poor

environmental conditions in schools have often been neglected and today working conditions are often much worse in classrooms than they are in the offices where adults work.

Improvement of school education has a high priority in most countries and the present results should provide a strong incentive to improve education by improving the mediocre IEQ that is all too frequently found in schools today. This should not only be a priority for the Danish School Authorities. Although Danish pupils were used, the present results can be generalized to other countries in Europe and the USA because classroom conditions and the level of education and educational programs in Denmark are guite similar to those in other developed countries.

Profitable Sales, Development and Production of Customer Specific Products

Many companies main reason for existence is the ability to sell, develop, manufacture and deliver competitive customer specific products. Examples of customer specific products are refrigeration systems, power plants, pressure transmitters, frequency converters, valves, speaker systems, intelligent housing controls etc. The customization of products often leads to increased complexity in nearly all the functional areas within a company. Some of the main challenges which affect profitability from the perspective of sales. engineering and production in these companies are:

Challenges in Sales: The assortment is difficult to communicate to customers, which often means that the customers will specify products which have not been sold, designed and produced before. There is a saying that "if you do not tell the customer what you have – he will explain what he wants". This means that the possibilities of guiding

customers into products which already exist in the company are very limited. When a product is sold, the specifications of what exactly has been sold are often unclear, leading to disturbance in the down stream activities, i.e. design, production logistics etc.

Challenges in Engineering: Often both the product assortment and IT systems grow in complexity in such a way that each project will be difficult to complete on time and budget with expected quality. The product assortment will often have a "spaghetti" structure meaning that the subsystems are coupled in such a way that if one subsystem is changed, it will affect other subsystems. Seen from the IT viewpoint, Bill of Material and other documentation will also grow in complexity and contain severe errors.

The Institute of Configuration Management has within the framework of CMII estimated how



[Source CMII]

correctness of data influences resource consumption. The diagram above shows the correlation between correctness of data and resources necessary for carrying out the activities shown in the left part of the diagram.

The diagram shows that if correctness is 92%, the estimated resource consumption is 200 compared to 100 resources if data were 100% correct. The implication is that, if a company has 92% correctness of data then 50% of all employees are doing non value adding activities.

Challenges in Production: The many new variants to be from customer to proproduced are often based on specifications, e.g. Bill of Materials and drawings which are not error free. This makes it difficult to obtain a proper flow and quality level in production, purchase and delivery. Sometimes flexibility of the production system does not match the areas in the product assortment where variety is needed.

Challenges in the Interplay between sales, engineering and production: Often there will be several iterations between the above functional areas which makes it even more difficult to

handle the whole chain duction and delivery efficient and effectively. Product structures are transformed in several IT systems, which each have their own individual structures. This makes development and order execution complicated and errors are introduced. A consequence of the above is that nearly all activities within these companies become projects and is done ad hoc in individual projects. There is a serious risk that more long term development of products is jeopardized which affects the long term competitiveness.

How to handle the challenges?

There are several ways to handle the above challenges. In general there seems to be two wavs which are either reducing the complexity or handling the complexity. Examples of means of reducing the complexity are modularization. standardization, platforms of products, product data and business processes. Examples of complexity handling means are introduction of Configuration, Product Life cycle Management, **Enterprise Resource** Planning and modern CAD systems. In many cases the best results are achieved by a combination of complexity handling and complexity reduction means.

One of the research areas within the MEK's section of design and product development has been complexity reduction by harmonization and alignment of product structures across sales, engineering and production. This is supported by means of a so-called Product Family Master Plan (PFMP), shown below. It is based

on Theory of Technical Systems, Theory of Domains and Object oriented modelling. These three theories form a strong base. Theory of Technical Systems explains chain view explains how the structure and behaviour of artefacts. Theory of Domains explains synthesis processes. Object oriented modelling describes structure and behaviour of IT systems. The PFMP describes a product assortment and related IT structures seen from three points of views. These views are market, product assortment and supply chain/production.

The market view explains the product assortment seen from a customer point of view. This view makes it possible to judge which part of the product assortment creates value for the customers. The

product assortment view explains the product assortment and variants including functionality of subsystems and modules. The production/supply the product is produced. One of the main benefits of application is that the product assortment becomes traceable from market to production and opposite. Reading the PFMP from the market viewpoint, it will be able to explain that a certain feature in the market view is realized by means of subsystems within the product assortment, which again is produced or created by a certain part of the supply chain. In practice generation of a PFMP often involves millions of data to be handled and therefore software which can extract part of the data from existing legacy IT systems (ERP, PDM, CAD etc) has



been developed by the MEK department.

Normally the PFMP is applied two times, i.e. for modelling the current state situation and for modelling the future state situation. So far the PFMP has been applied in more than 40 companies. One of them is York Refrigeration Denmark.

Case York Refrigeration

York Refrigeration is a global leader in development, manufacturing, and sales of refrigeration systems, which typically are used in cold storage warehouses, rinks, production sites, etc. An important business driver is customization, as each refrigeration system is tailor made to match the needs of the individual customer. Other important business drivers are stateof-the-art technology and short lead times.

Customized products are often associated with an ever increasing complexity of the product structures. YORK has also had this experience, and the consequences of this growing complexity include:

- Difficult transformation of an order into a Bill Of Material (BOM)
- Increased amount of resources spent on BOM maintenance
- Increased amount of resources spent on CAD maintenance
- Increased non conformity

To turn this development around, YORK decided to implement PFMP to manage all product structures across all major ITsystems, i.e. CAD, ERP, and PDM systems.



The president of York Denmark, Ole Mølby and Project Manager Thomas Frøslev states the following benefits from application of the Product Family Master Plan:

- "I am excited that product structures across the company have been aligned and harmonized – this will have significant bottom line impact"
- "We have developed a common language for all product families across the company"
- "Previously the same product might be defined in 20 different places. Today there is only one, the PFMP"
- "The foundation for success is good method (PFMP) and a top management team which fully support. Now York has both ffoundations in place"

Major Research Activities

Solid Mechanics

Coastal, Maritime and Structural Engineering

Indoor Environment

Fluid Mechanics

Energy Engineering

Engineering Design

Teaching Programme

MEK Administration











Head of Section: Viggo Tvergaard Phone: +45 4525 4273 E-mail: <u>fam@mek.dtu.dk</u> Website: <u>www.fam.mek.dtu.dk</u>

Research Activities of the Solid Mechanics Section (FAM)

The main research topics are the mechanics of materials and the strength and dynamics of structural components and systems, as well as machine elements and mechatronics. In materials mechanics the work includes basic development of material models for inelasticity and damage, size effects on material behaviour, applications to fracture mechanics and fatigue, micromechanics and metal forming. The structural mechanics areas include vibration analyses and advanced design using optimization methods. The design of multi physics problems, based on the Finite Element Method and topology optimization, is a major activity.

The machine elements group works in tribology and on active vibration damping through magnetic acluators.



Surface roughening on the grain level

Surface roughening of polycrystalline metals is a common phenomenon observed in metal forming processes. Due to different crystallographic orientations of the grains, the grain boundaries are acting as obstructions to the motion of dislocations. This accumulation of dislocations at the grain boundaries can be modelled using a nonlocal formulation of a crystal plasticity theory. In crystal plasticity a quantitative description of plastic deformation is based on crystallographic shearing due to dislocation motion along specific slip systems. Such a theory has been formulated for finite strains and implemented in a finite element program. The formulation makes use of an energy potential at the grain boundaries depending on the accumulated crystallographic slip. Numerical simulations using the nonlocal crystal plasticity formulation are compared with experimentally observed results for Aluminium specimens deformed in tension.



Scanning electron microscope image of the surface of an Aluminium specimen deformed in tension. A grain boundary is going from the upper left to the lower right.

Intelligent active magnetic bearing

An increasing number of industrial turbomachines are already built with active magnetic bearings (AMB) but the potential of the AMB has not been fully exploited yet. AMBs have been used as a simple bearing, and not as an integrated identification and diagnosis tool. To fully exploit AMBs one must think of them as both an actuator and a bearing, capable of not only supporting the rotating shaft but also capable of exciting the shaft with predefined signals. This unique feature facilitates measurements of input-output (displacement and force) relations and leads to novel approaches in identifying crucial rotor parameters. An intelligent AMB is being developed with the aim of aiding the accurate identification of damping and stiffness coefficients of active lubricated journal bearings. [55, 182, 183, 207]



4 pole active magnetic bearing, capable of generating forces up to 2000 N.



Selected research projects

Mixed mode interface crack growth

Current studies include the influence of anisotropic plasticity under plane strain conditions. Also mode 3 effects are incorporated in debonding analysis. [198, 199, 200] Active magnetic bearing and active lubricated bearing test rig.

Eigenfrequency optimization of fibre reinforced plates using optimality criteria and mathematical programming

Composite plates are designed in order to maximize the performance with respect to eigenfrequencies. The plates are considered to be laminates where the individual plies consist of orthotropic material. The design task is the orientation of the orthotropic material in each element of the discretization and the ratio between the amounts of material put in the two directions of the fibre-net. [171]

Particle debonding in anisotropic materials

Debonding failure in plastically anisotropic materials containing rigid particles is investigated numerically using a unit cell approach. Different particle shapes and orientations (geometrical anisotropy) as well as non-uniform interfacial strength are considered. [34, 159]

Surface roughness in anisotropic materials

Surface instabilities and surface roughness of a free surface is analyzed during severe straining of anisotropic materials. At the very bottom of the surface troughs high strains arise, which can result in shear fracture propagating deeply into the material.

Size effects in anisotropic sheets

A viscous material model is proposed in which both a material lenght scale as well as plastic anisotropy enters. The model is used to predict necking of sheets.

Vibro-impact analysis by discontinuous transformations and averaging

Many near-elastic vibro-impact problems can be conveniently solved by discontinuous transformations combined with averaging. A general technique for this is developed, and applications illustrated for simple harmonic oscillators, self-excited friction oscillators with stops or clearances, and a particle bouncing on a vibrating gravity. [64a]

Aeroservoelasticity of wind turbines

Theoretical studies on the structural dynamics of wind turbines, focusing on the interaction between aeroelasticity and control, and the possibilities in using active control to reduce fatigue loads on wind turbines.

Large deformations of polymer materials

The mechanical behaviour of polymers can be analysed using a more complicated, non-linear material model than the well-known elastic-plastic material models describing the deformation of metals.

Synthesis and topology optimization of optomechanical systems

(EURYI-project) Modulation, dispersion and polarization of light are controlled by mechanical means such as external pressure, thermal stress and surface acoustic waves. [7, 24, 27, 143, 144]

Topology optimization in fluid dynamics

Micro and macro devices involving fluid flow are optimized for pressure loss, prescribed velocities and diffusion. Examples are micro-fluidic devices, mixers and bipolar plates for fuel cells. [134]

Topology optimization with pressure loads

Through a new incompressible elasticity formulation using mixed finite elements it is possible to use the standard topology optimization approach to solve problems with design dependent pressure loads. Design examples include lids, submerged structures and water containing dams.

Topology optimization of photonic building blocks

Applications may be in future ultra-compact integrated photonic components. Several bends and splitters in photonic crystals and wires have been designed and tested experimentally [7, 26, 27, 64, 144, 154]

Topology optimization of elastic and acoustic wave-propagation - the PHONON project

New optimized material and structures have been developed for control of waves and vibrations, utilizing the bandgap effect. Examples are acoustic mufflers, bending waves in beams and plates and highly dissipative structures [24,143]

Topology optimization for acoustic-structure interaction using a mixed FE formulation

A new topology optimization method for acousticstructure interaction structures has been developed. The mixed displacement/pressure formulation is used to interpolate between different governing equations without the need for an explicit boundary representation.

Analysis of cracks in big Diesel engines

A program to model two dimensional crack growth based on the Boundary Element Method (BEM) has been developed. The program is used to study crack propagation in a piston crown. A method to correct the crack extension direction is also included. In order to analyse three-dimensional crack propagation in existing Finite Element Models of the big Diesel engines a method, which combines the BEM and the Finite Element Method, is considered.

Active vibration control of rotor-blade systems

The active control of blade vibrations via active bearings is investigated both theoretically and experimentally. The feasibility of controlling blade vibrations via bearings is depending strongly on the patterns of blade mistuning and on the significance of the dynamic coupling amongst rotor and blades. [54, 56, 114]

Active lubrication for eliminating instability in rotating machines

The active control of lateral dynamics of flexible rotating machines via active lubricated bearings is investigated theoretically as well as experimentally. The control system design of such bearings is a multidisciplinary task involving rotor dynamics, fluid dynamics and control theory. [55, 182, 183, 207]

Thermoelastohydrodynamic lubrication applied to heavy loaded rotating machines

Hydro-generators of water turbines weighting several hundred tons are normally supported by thrust bearings with many tilting-pads. The minimum oil film thickness is one of the most important design parameters and depends on the lubrication mechanisms, lubricant properties, structural and thermal deformations of collar and pads. [139]



Head of Section: Poul Andersen Phone: +45 4525 1366 E-mail: vj@mek.dtu.dk Website: www.skk.mek.dtu.dk



Research activities of the Coastal, Maritime and Structural Engineering Section (SKK)

The research topics of the Section include design, analysis and operation of large maritime, coastal and land-based structures under natural loads, such as waves and wind.

The main research themes are:

- Hydrodynamics: Waves and currents and their interaction at restricted water depths, wave loads on ships, offshore and coastal structures, flows and loads on ship propellers.
- Structures: Design and analysis of structures; structural damping; composite structures; damage tolerance of sandwich structures.
- Risk and reliability: Risk acceptance criteria, risk evaluation, stochastic load and response modelling.
- Sediment transport and morphology of rivers and coasts: Waves and turbulence in surf zones, wave-driven currents and exchange processes, riverbed forms, effect of structures on river morphology.
- Interaction: Performance of ships and large structures subject to wind and wave loads and their interaction with the environment. Decision support systems.

Ship Collisions

According to statistical analyses, ship collisions and groundings are responsible for about half of all ship losses and for about 70% of all polluting events caused by shuttle tankers. So collisions and groundings are major risks to the safety of ships. A disastrous oil spill from a struck oil tanker has become one of the major problems in view of conservation of maritime environment. So far double hulls have been introduced to reduce the consequences of collision

22



and grounding events. But it is still a fact that collision accidents involving struck double hull tankers result in oil spills. One example from the Danish waters is the collision accident involving the double hull oil tanker *"Baltic Carrier"* in Kadetrenden a couple of years ago. Therefore, there are good reasons to study procedures to minimize the consequences of ship collision accidents.

In order to further reduce the oil spill from struck oil tankers, research is being performed at MEK on the effect of buffer bulbous bows. Relatively soft buffer bows absorb part of the kinetic energy of the striking ship before penetrating the inner hull of the struck vessel and they result in smaller load intensities on the struck vessel. The specific purpose of the present project is to verify the effectiveness of a prototype buffer bulbous bow structure in ship-ship collisions as compared with that of standard bulbous bows.



Comprehensive numerical analyses will be performed for buffer bow designs and the results will be compared to experimental results. The experiments on buffer bows have been carried out at the Structures Analysis Group at National Maritime Research Institute in Tokyo, Japan under the supervision of Mr. Yasuhira Yamada. At present Mr. Yamada is on leave from a position as chief researcher at the National Maritime Research Institute to work on the project at MEK. The project itself is part of a major Japanese national research project and Mr. Yamada's expenses here in Denmark are paid by the Japanese Government. [209, 89]

Selected research topics

Estimation of impulsive wave-induced loads on a FPSO

The effect of impulsive loads like slamming and green water on deck on the wave-induced bending moment is estimated by a semi-analytical approach. These loads can be due to bow flare slamming, bottom slamming or green water. The results are given in closedform expressions and the required input is restricted to the main ship dimensions. The formulas make it simple to obtain quick estimates in the conceptual design phase and to perform a sensitivity study of the variation of the ship's main dimensions and operational profile [5a, 146].

Hydroelasticity of marine structures

The hydroelastic response equations of a floating plate with large deflections in multidirectional irregular waves are established, and a solution method in the frequency domain is discussed including extreme value statistics. A very large floating structure is chosen as an example. The numerical results show that the membrane forces have an influence on the vertical displacements and the bending moments. [13]



Conditional second order short-crested water waves applied to extreme wave episodes

A derivation of the mean second order short-crested wave pattern and associated wave kinematics, conditional on a given magnitude of the wave crest, is presented. The analysis is based on the second order Sharma and Dean finite water wave theory. A comparison with a measured extreme wave profile, the Draupner New Year Wave, shows a good agreement in the mean, indicating that this second order wave can be a good identifier of the shape and occurrence of extreme wave events. [28, 145]

Wave height distribution observed by ships in the North Atlantic

The analysis of almost 25.000 observations of the wave height from ships in the North Atlantic shows that the encountered wave height distribution is significantly lower than the distribution provided by the classification societies for structural assessment. It is seen that for higher waves the crews avoid sailing in following sea and as expected the speed is decreased in higher waves. There is, however, still a relatively high probability that the ship will maintain its service speed even in relatively severe sea. The distribution derived could be used to incorporate the effect of weather routing in a long term analysis of the wave loads on a ship. [88]

Springing of ships

Significant springing vibrations in ships have recently been measured in a large ocean-going bulk carrier. In this project it is shown that the springing response depends strongly on second order (sum frequency) terms involving cross-coupling terms from the combined wind- and swell-driven wave system. The agreement with measured springing responses is found to be greatly improved when these second-order crosscoupling terms are included. [2, 67a]

Service performance of ships

A simple method has been established for the

evaluation of the service performance of ships. Input data collected daily on board are adjusted to correspond to a well-defined condition which is full load, service speed and no wind or waves. This makes a comparison between different ships and between different voyages for the same ship possible. The procedure has been applied to two 35,000 dwt product carriers, fitted with different propellers, over a period of approximately two years. Difference in performance due to different propellers has been found. [4, 74].

Non-linear wave modelling

Numerical models of highly non-linear waves in the coastal environment have been developed. The purpose is to achieve a better understanding of the dynamics of these and their interaction with coastal bathymetries and structures placed in the offshore and coastal environment. The main tool has been a finite difference based solution to a set of extremely accurate Boussinesq equations. [6, 35, 72].

Wave interaction with fixed structures

This PhD project focuses on implementing a Discontinuous Galerkin Finite Element Method (DG-FEM) for solving the Boussinesq equations. This solution provides full flexibility in terms of both the geometry and the local order of the numerical solution and allows the treatment of (wall-sided) structures of arbitrary form in plan. [21, 141]

Combined numerical/physical modelling for coastal waves problems

This project has developed a new unified wave generation theory which allows the physical wave tank to be enclosed in a larger numerical domain to combine the advantages of both modelling tools. As a spin-off, the new generation technique turns out to be vastly superior to existing methods for generating highly nonlinear periodic waves in physical wave tanks.



Wave-instabilities in 2D and 3D

Oscillating crescent waves are considered, arising from three-dimensional (class II) instabilities of steep plane waves. Their selection can be explained from a conventional stability analysis, when effects of a finitewidth tank are taken into account. Furthermore, the numerical Boussinesq-type model has been used to investigate the longterm evolution of doubly-periodic short-crested wave instabilities. Results reveal that the evolution in these cases is qualitatively different than the classical evolution in a single horizontal dimension. For example, even in weakly non-linear cases, the combined evolution results in a quasi-recurrence cycle that is asymmetric, in contrast to the related two-dimensional case for plane waves. [22, 219]

Generation of non-linear short-crested waves in deep water

A numerical investigation has been made, which demonstrates that the observed unsteady features (e.g. bending wave crests, dipping at the centerline, and pronounced modulations in the propagating direction) are in fact due to release of spurious free first harmonics, arising from the neglect of third-order components in the three-dimensional (physical) wave generation.

Third-order theory for irregular waves

A new third-order theory for bi-directional bi-chromatic water waves has been developed. For the first time this theory allows an assessment of the non-linear interaction of two directional wave trains of different amplitude and frequency in arbitrary depth. Although the theory only considers two interacting wave trains, the expression for the amplitude dispersion is generally valid for a random number of interacting waves, as these interactions should be treated on a two-by-two basis. The new theory has been successfully applied to a variety of non-linear phenomena related to wave resonance. [227]

EPCOAST (Exploitation and Protection of Coastal Zones)

EPCOAST is a 3-year (2005-2008) Research Frame Programme financed by the Danish Research Council for Technology and Production Sciences (FTP, Forskningsrådet for Teknologi og Produktion). This research program is being undertaken jointly by DTU (Danish Technical University); and DHI Water & Environment. The programme includes 1) coastal processes due to organized vortices and 2) morphological modelling. [53, 61, 62, 192]

More information can be obtained from the project website: <u>http://www.epcoast.mek.dtu.dk</u>

Experimental and numerical investigation of seabed and stone protection interaction

Scour is one of the failure modes of coastal and hydraulic structures. Stone cover has proven to be an effective measure for scour protection in most engineering problems, including the design of wind farms. The objectives of this research are (1) to study the processes related to scour protection and seabed interaction, and (2) to put into practical use the knowledge to be advanced from this research. Experiments are conducted in the current/wave-flume facilities of the Hydraulic Laboratory of the Coastal, Maritime & Structural Engineering Section. For the numerical investigations, a three-dimensional generalpurpose flow solver, EllipSys3D, will be coupled with a morphologic model to simulate several related cases. [65]

Stone protection in/on a liquefiable soil bed

When the seabed sediment is fine the seabed soil can be liquefied under large waves. Two special cases are under investigation: (1) stones are dumped over a backfill to protect the backfill against scour; and (2) stones are dumped on a pipeline lying in a trench and the trench is backfilled with the native soil to protect the pipeline against fishing gear etc. The objective of the present investigation is to study/disclose the actual



processes regarding the interaction between the stone protection layer and the soil, and on the basis of this, make recommendations for the use of stone protection in engineering practice. [193]

Wave boundary layers over a stone-covered bed

Wave boundary layer over a bed with large roughness, simulating stone/rock/armour block cover on the sea bottom, is studied. The roughness elements used in the experiments are stones ranging in size from 1.4 cm to 3.85 cm in one group of experiments and regular ping-pong balls measuring 3.6 cm in the other. The orbital-motion-amplitude-to-roughness ratio at the bed is rather small, in the range O(0.5-5). The mean and turbulence properties of the boundary-layer flow are measured. Various configurations of the roughness elements are used in the ping-pong ball experiments to study the influence of packing pattern, packing density, number of layers and surface roughness of the roughness elements.

Damage and imperfection tolerance of fibre reinforced composite structures

In this project prediction of in-service damage and production imperfection tolerance of fibre reinforced polymeric composite structures, especially debond damages in sandwich structures, is considered. Future extensions will include improving damage tolerance by taking advantage of non-linear phenomena growth of debonds in foam cores sandwich structures under cyclic loading. Imperfections on the buckling capacity of composite shells in wind turbine blades will also be investigated. [5a, 40, 111, 137, 142, 148, 161]

Placement and efficiency of dampers on structures

A general method for placement and calibration of dampers has been developed [Main & Krenk, J. Sound Vib., 2005]. It is based on a discrete model of the structure as obtained e.g. by the Finite Element Method. The damped mode of vibration is assumed to be a combination of the free vibration mode and the corresponding mode in which the dampers have been



locked. For special structural elements like cables the two-component representation of the damped modes can be carried out in closed form, leading to a simple design oriented format. This format is used in the de sign of major new bridges. [31, 36]

Optimal calibration of tuned mass dampers

A complete analysis of the classic Tuned Mass Damper (mass supported by a spring) has been performed and it has been demonstrated that the optimal damping is about 15% higher than the classic value. The new results and theoretical results for the use of multiple dampers on flexible structures have been used in the initial design phase of the new Langelinie Footbridge in Copenhagen, currently under construction. [153]

Numerical computation of dynamic response of structures

A new algorithm for numerical computation of the dynamic response of structures with 4'th order accuracy – in contrast to the 2'nd order accuracy of the classic algorithms – has been developed for linear structural dynamics. It has excellent high-frequency behaviour and by eliminating unintentional dispersion effects introduced by most discrete models it is ideal for wave propagation problems in solids, e.g. ground and structure borne vibrations. It has also been demonstrated that the classic high-frequency improvements can be obtained as special cases of a new formulation in which artificial damping is introduced via a first order filter [32, 152].



Research activities for the Indoor Environment Section (IK)

The Indoor Environment Section constitutes the core of the International Centre for Indoor Environment and Energy, established in 1998 based on a 10-year contract between the Danish Technical Research Council and DTU.

The section's interdisciplinary research program aims at developing design criteria and innovative technical solutions for the creation of healthy, comfortable and productive indoor environments which satisfy human requirements at low energy consumption. Many research projects involve exposure of human subjects to single or multiple indoor environment parameters and subsequent observation of the effect on their comfort, health and productivity

Head of section: Geo Clausen Phone: +45 4525 4025 E-mail: <u>ie@mek.dtu.dk</u> Website: <u>www.ik.mek.dtu.dk</u>



Physiological measurements performed inside the cabin.

Aircraft cabin simulation studies

The indoor environment in aircraft cabins is studied in a simulated section of an aircraft cabin with 21 seats constructed inside a climate chamber. In previous experiments (Strøm-Tejsen et al. 2005a, b; Sun et al. 2005) the benefits of increasing the outside air supply rate and of operating available types of air cleaners in the return air stream were examined. In 2005 the research continued with exposing subjects to four simulated flights, each lasting 11 hours, in a 2x2 design in which outdoor supply rate was set to two levels and an air cleaner was either operated or idle at each outside air supply rate. It was found that more symptoms of distress were indeed reported in the last 4 hours of an 11-hour simulated flight than in the first 7 hours. The symptoms were more effectively alleviated by operating the air cleaner than by increasing the outside air supply rate by an amount which in turn would cost \$20M per aircraft in increased fuel consumption during its service life.

The latest experiments investigated whether the high

levels of ozone encountered at 10km altitude, which typically leads to gate-to-gate average cabin ozone concentrations of 80 ppb, is responsible for some or even all of the negative symptoms reported by passengers and cabin crew. The analysis of the data obtained in these experiments is still in progress, but it is already clear that ozone can be responsible for many of the symptoms commonly reported by passengers and cabin crew. This suggests that the lower levels of ozone encountered in buildings at ground level may be responsible for some indoor air problems. If later experiments at the Centre lead to the conclusion that this is true, ozone elimination may become part of an innovative and energy-efficient use of air cleaners in return air as an alternative to increased ventilation rates. [190, 191, 194, 211]



Human subjects performing simulated office work during the exposure in the climatic. chamber

New energy efficient concepts for the cooling of buildings

There are different approaches to reducing the energy consumption when controlling the climate in buildings. These include the use of water-based radiant cooling systems which may also utilize the building's thermal mass combined with night cooling or heating, or cooling by pipes embedded in floors, walls or ceilings (slab heating or cooling).

The energy-saving advantages of such systems are high water temperatures for cooling and low water temperature for heating. This will increase the efficiency of the cooling systems (chillers, heat pumps) and the potential for using renewable energy sources such as ground

heat exchangers, evaporative cooling, adsorption heat pumps etc. Besides by using the storage capacity of the building the peak loads can be reduced and a major part of the energy use can be transferred to night time. Such systems are often associated with



indoor temperatures which drift somewhat during the day. In an experimental study we are investigating the influence of temperature drift on the occupants comfort, health and productivity, based on which recommended limits for temperature drifts will be established. The Centre has been involved in several building projects (New Bangkok Airport, Operaen) using this technology. Through an EU-ASIA program the Centre is involved in a demonstration project in Malaysia, where the concept will be used in a zero-energy office building. At the same time we will be involved in a Danish demonstration project supported by PSO funding. [42, 43, 83, 84, 85, 169]

Allergies and indoor environments

Asthma and allergies are increasing worldwide. The causes are not known. Changes in the quality of the indoor environment are amongst the main suspected causes. The Centre is addressing these issues in extensive ongoing epidemiological studies on the home environment and health effects among, especially, small children. The studies are conducted in Sweden (Dampness in buildings and health study, Selma study, Day care centre study), Bulgaria (Allhome study) and Singapore, and are planned in Taiwan, and Tianjin (China), in order to increase the power of the study by studying extremes. The studies are aimed at testing and generating hypotheses on why people are getting ill in buildings, with special emphasis on exposures due to "dampness", building material emissions, ventilation, pets and electronics. Significant and community-wise highly important findings have already been published in scientific publications (effects of plasticisers - phthalates in indoor dust, petkeeping and of home ventilation rate), but more results will be available during 2006. Some of the findings are tested in controlled human exposure studies in DTU's indoor environment chambers. [8, 9, 10, 11, 38]

Selected research topics

Indoor environments and human comfort, health and productivity

Buildings which make their occupants feel unwell are unacceptable. Extensive field and laboratory studies are ongoing to identify what makes buildings healthy. [8, 9, 10, 11, 37, 42, 43, 97, 107, 109, 130, 131, 140, 147, 157, 167, 168, 169, 170, 190, 191, 197, 205, 206, 211, 213, 215, 216, 217, 230, 232, 236, 237, 238]

New strategies for individual control of the environment

People are different and have individual preferences regarding the indoor environment.

Strategies and technical systems are developed to accommodate these differences through individual control of the microenvironment near a person. [37, 44, 57, 220, 226, 231, 252, 253]

Pollution sources in ventilation systems

We are rethinking how air should be handled in tomorrow's buildings. This includes the role of HVAC components in air-handling systems, of ducts and of the air distribution system. [110]

New methods for air cleaning

The use of a regenerative desiccant rotor may decrease the requirements for outdoor air supply to a building. Extensive testing is ongoing. [129, 151, 186, 194, 234]

Combined exposures to several indoor environmental parameters

Development of models for predicting human response to co-occurring loads from e.g. noise, the thermal environment and poor air quality. [115]

Chemical transformations

Chemical transformations may significantly alter indoor air quality. Chemical reactions occur both in the air and on indoor surfaces, including the surfaces of air filters




in HVAC systems. The research activities include human exposure studies to assess the importance of various chemical reactions. [19, 38, 99, 108, 180, 208]

Particles

The section is addressing important and neglected questions such as the role of indoor particles in perceived air quality, SBS symptoms and productivity; the design and operation of ventilation systems to limit unwanted exposure to airborne particles; and the indirect impact on occupants of particles deposited on surfaces or collected on filters. [195]



Head: Jens Nørkær Sørensen Phone: +45 4525 4314 E-mail: jns@mek.dtu.dk Website: www.fm.mek.dtu.dk

Research activities of the Fluid Mechanics Section (FM)

Applied research topics focus on two main areas: aerodynamics of wind turbines and flow-related industrial process equipment. More fundamental research in fluid mechanics includes laminarturbulent transition, aero-acoustics, rotating flows, room convection, biological flows and the wetting and slippage of fluids at nanoscale.

Fundamental research in material science includes studies of materials under nanoscale confinement. In computational fluid mechanics (CFD) we use both commercial codes and codes developed in-house. In experimental fluid mechanics (EFD) we mostly use optical methods, such as Laser Doppler Anemometry (LDA), Particle Image Velocimetry (PIV) and related techniques. [41, 44, 51, 52]



tic pressure waves.

Selected research topics

Noise from wind turbines

Noise is an important issue in today's wind turbine designs. In order to predict broadband noise, various non-linear aero-acoustic models are being developed. Current research is focused on aerodynamically generated noise from flow past wind turbine blades. The main part of the research project is sponsored by the Danish Independent Research Council (FTP). Figure 1 shows the propagation of acoustic pressure waves from the flow past a NACA0012 airfoil at 0 degree angle of attack an at Re=20.000 [71, 100]

Investigation of Vortex Generators

A project funded by DSF (Danish Strategic Research Council), which was initiated in 2005, where the flow

induced by vortex generators will be studied mostly experimentally but also numerically. A benchmark of the flow past a bump mounted with vortex generators will be created in order to validate various numerical schemes for computing the flow. The flow will be thoroughly measured using Particle Image Velocimetry (PIV) and Laser Doppler Anemometry (LDA).

Wind turbine aerodynamics

Research on wind turbine aerodynamics has for many years been one of the main activities of the Section. Various aspects are studied using state-of-the-art Navier-Stokes computations and blade-element/ momentum (BEM) techniques. In the past year the work has been focused on further development of the BEM technique, especially with respect to 3dimensional and unsteady effects, and the understanding of vortex dynamics in the wake. A joint Mexican/Danish PhD project was initiated were the onset of turbulence will be estimated in order to further improve the accuracy of CFD based flow models of flow past a rotating wind turbine blade. [58, 59, 91]

Database on wind characteristics

During 2005 the wind database has been further enlarged with more wind data and wind turbine response measurements. Still a number of investigations are based on wind field measurements extracted from the wind database data. [25, 78, 79]

Modelling the flow in wind farms with special emphasis on wake effects

With the development of wind energy evolving towards large wind farms with many wind turbines in a small area and often arranged in a line or a grid, many new national and EU funded projects have been granted to investigate the disturbance of the incoming flow to a single wind turbine rotor from all the other upwind wind turbines. As a standard it is so far allowed to assume an increase in the general turbulence intensities calculated by some relatively simple formulas. Several of the new projects focuses on a more realistic de-



scription of the real inflow using e.g. CFD to model the influence of the flow past each turbine. Figure 2 shows how the flow past the three first turbines in a row aligned with incoming wind breaks up into something similar to turbulence. When the turbines in addition are yawed as shown in Figure 3, also the tip vortex from the upwind turbine is hitting the downwind turbine causing a severe pulse loading on the blades of the downwind turbine every time a blade is passing a tip vortex. [96]

Thermodynamics of nanomaterials

Our understanding of the thermodynamic behaviour of materials is largely based on experimental data acquired from the bulk material.

Large deviations from bulk properties are well known, e.g. the melting point of solid particles is reduced as the size of the particle reaches the nanoscale. The research project is focused on the influence of confinement on the thermodynamic properties of nanoparticles.

The work is conducted with ETH Zurich and the Paul Scherrer Institute, Switzerland.

Multiscale simulations

The numerical simulation of nanofluidic devices often requires an atomistic description to capture the nonbulk behaviour of the individual nanoscale elements. Coupling the nano device to the exterior microfluidic system using an all atomistic "direct numerical simulation" approach is computational prohibitive, and presents an inherent multiscale problem. The research project involves the coupling of atomistic molecular dynamics simulation techniques with continuum computational fluid dynamics methods. The project is performed at ETH Zurich, Switzerland.

The static and dynamic behaviour of carbon nanotubes in water

Figure 3

Figure 2

Carbon nanotubes are novel structures with unique mechanical, electrical, thermal and chemical properties. As such they offer great promise of

application in nanotechnology and intense research has been devoted in the past decade to explore and quantify these possibilities. The present research project presents fundamental studies of carbon nanotubes immersed or transporting water. The work is performed with ETH Zurich, Switzerland and NASA Ames Research Center, USA.

Development of parallel particle-mesh library

Particle methods are a powerful unifying formulation for the simulation of continuum and discrete systems. The grid-free character of particle methods is relaxed by the introduction of a mesh for the re-initialisation of particles, the efficient computation of the field equations, and the discretization of differential operators. The coexistence of meshes and particles presents a set of challenging parallelization issues which in the past have hindered the broader use of particle methods. The present research project addresses these key issues in the framework of a scientific library for large scale parallel simulations using particles. Prospect applications range from atomistic simulations, dissipative particle dynamics of mesoscopic systems, to smooth particle hydrodynamics and particle vortex methods for continuum fluid- and solid mechanics, to granular flow, plasma- and astrophysical applications. The research project is conducted with ETH Zurich.



Head of section: Henrik Carlsen Phone: +45 4525 4171 E-mail: <u>bh@mek.dtu.dk</u> Website: <u>www.et.mek.dtu.dk</u>

Research activities of the Energy Engineering Section (ET)

The research in the Energy Engineering Section is divided in four main areas:

- Energy systems and power plants
- Internal and external combustion engine
- Refrigeration
- Biomass for power production

Energy systems and power plants include process integration and analysis and optimization of thermal systems and components with special focus on power plants. Biomass for power production is mainly concentrated on thermal gasification of biomass and utilisation of gasification gas in IC-engines. Main activities of the engine group is utilisation of alternative fuels in engines (internal combustion and Stirling engines) and emissions and new activities concerning large engines for ship-propulsion has been initiated during 2005.

Laboratory experiments, design and manufacture of pilot plants and field tests of existing systems are also an important part of the research activities.

A general field of research is the development of mathematical models and analytical methods by means of numerical simulation for the analysis of thermal systems and processes. The Emphasis is placed on process optimization, energy efficiency, and automatic control.

Success for Hydrogen Vehicle in Shell Eco-Marathon

As a part of the CDIO (Conceive Design Implement and Operate) teaching program at the Energy Engineering Section students developed a prototype car driven by dimethyl ether (DME) instead of diesel in





a combustion engine. This prototype car took part in the Shell Eco Marathon at Nogaro Raceway in 2004 and was very successful.

However, the Section had further ambitions and it was decided to build a new car for 2005, DTU Dynamo, based on a fuel cell driven vehicle using hydrogen. Hydrogen is often mentioned as the future fuel for transportation. And indeed hydrogen is a suitable fuel for a vehicle engine. It can be used almost directly in the combustion engines of today and it can be applied to a fuel cell, which produces electricity for an electric motor.

"DTU Dynamo" was ready in time for the Shell race in 2005. It was an "Urban Concept" vehicle, which means that the vehicle can be approved for ordinary road application with minor modifications. For example the driver must be able to sit upright in a chair as in ordinary cars, and the vehicle must have four wheels as well as front and rear lights. In other words the vehicle looks like a "real car". On the other hand it is much heavier than the "prototype" vehicles "DTU Innovator" and "Spirit of Copenhagen". "DTU Dynamo" weighs about 160 kg.

"DTU Dynamo" was an incredible success! The vehicle won the urban concept class and was without any doubt the most fuel-efficient vehicle - 671 km /litre of petrol equivalent. No other competitor got anywhere near this result and naturally it was a new world record in this class!

Selected research topics

Simulation and process integration

Development of mathematical models and methods of analysis for energy systems and components using numerical simulation. [23, 123, 124, 178]

Internal combustion engines

Modification of fuels and engines to reduce their emissions. Application of new fuels with focus on utilization of dimethyl ether (DME) in diesel engines. Analysis of the influence of fuels and lubricants on emissions and wear. New power train concepts for vehicles. [90, 103, 184, 187, 225a, 235, 243,]

Stirling engines

Optimization of engine performance; component and process development; operation on natural gas and renewable fuels such as wood chips and biogas. [212]

Gasification

Virtually tar-free gas is generated from straw and wood chips for use in small gasengine-based cogeneration plants. [103, 104, 222, 223]

Refrigeration

Indirect cooling and substitution of CFC and HCFC refrigerants with natural refrigerants.

Power plants, combustor and boiler technology

Development of new or improved processes and process control for power plants by utilization of computational tools. [177]

District heating

Field measurements of heat losses and operational optimization of distribution systems for district heating. [12, 75, 76, 80, 98]



Head of Section: Lars Hein Phone: +45 4525 6263 E-mail: <u>Ih@mek.dtu.dk</u> Website: <u>www.kp.mek.dtu.dk</u>



K&P research covers the nature and composition of mechanical and mechatronic products and systems.

Research activities of the Engineering Design Section (K&P)

The research activities of the Engineering Design Section (K&P) focus on four key areas:

- Product Development
- Engineering Design
- Control Engineering
- Mechatronics

Our research covers both the object of design (the product) as well as the process of design and development. Product areas are machines, mechatronics, and electro-mechanical products.

Research at K&P is highly synthesis oriented, with emphasis on innovation throughout the engineering design and product development processes, making the utilisation of laboratories and of the MEK central mechanical workshop essential. Furthermore, we collaborate extensively with trade and industry, testing research results in a professional industrial environment and engaging staff from companies in educational activities for our students. Target industries include major Danish companies such as Vestas, Bang & Olufsen, Lego, Danfoss, Novo Nordisk, York, and Nokia. But K&P also cooperate closely with a number of small and medium size enterprises.

K&P is actively involved in the organisation of a number of conferences and networking activities, including the international 'Design Society' (organisers of the ICED conferences) and 'Norddesign', and K&P are hosting the national 'Produktudviklingsdagen' (conference on Product Development), 'Mechatronics Day" (conference on Mechatronics) and 'Seminar om Smøreteknik' (a two day conference on Lubrication in cooperation with the Scandinavian company Statoil). Also, K&P are organising a series of workshops on innovation and product development under cipu (the Centre for Innovation in Product Development).



K&P research also covers the synthesis oriented processes of innovation, engineering design and product development, leading to products and systems.

Selected research topics

The Design and Innovation Research School

Primo 2005 the research school Design & Innovation was established as a formalized cooperation between SDU, AUC, KU, DTU and Risø. The school integrates social and material dimensions of design, focusing on technological systems.

The cooperation was defined in a proposal for constitution and the application for quality support and funding to Forskeruddannelsesudvalget (FUU, the Danish Board of Education of Researchers). The research school is closely related to cipu (the Centre

for Innovation in Product Development) through similar research profiles and through the use of cipu's workshops as meeting point for students and supervisors.

During 2005 the cipu workshops "Our future depends upon..." have created very promising corporate contacts. A further application for grants primo 2006

and a stronger formalisation of the research school are in the pipeline.

Information systems for engineering design

In order to design proper information systems for

The DTU summer school 2005 on engineering design research, hosted by Malta University. The summer school is held every year - up till now 350 PhD's have joined the school. engineering designers, it is important to understand how the engineers enrich their knowledge base during the design process, what motivates their queries for information, which strategies they use and what issues influence their information seeking behaviour. This research is based on a series of empirical studies carried out with engineering designers and intends to draw specifications for proper information systems to support conceptual design. [179]

Engineering design knowledge

Engineering Designers spend around a quarter of their time searching and providing information. The aim of the research is to develop tools to improve the engineering design process and engineering design products. The research focus on understanding the use of knowledge and experience in engineering design through the use of empirical studies carried out in industry. Current research projects include an understanding of engineering designers' competencies and how they may change in the future as well as the development of ontology for indexing design knowledge. The research also investigates the impact of change on a product. [3, 101, 102]

Conceptualisation

The early synthesis activities in a product development project are very important because the product's competitiveness is built in – or left out – during the conceptual phase. In the current situation of globalization and customers requesting products satisfying not only needs but also supporting or signalling the customers attitude and perception of value, it has become more and more important for companies to develop innovative and attractive products. Danish companies are now recruiting concept developers or concept engineers.

The traditional understanding in design methodology literature that the goal of the concept phase is to synthesise a solution principle is no longer adequate. In the recent years we have engaged in the development The idea with ... Use context Use context We find the conceptual aspects by identifying the difference that matters in the product's context. The idea in ... Design context Use in ... Design context

of new knowledge of conceptual designing and design concepts. We have focused on the research questions: What is a proper understanding of a need? What is the nature and content of a design concept? What is a rich and sound design concept description? Furthermore, we have broadened our perspective from a technical understanding to include the socio-technical aspects in the concept activities.

We have proposed an enhanced understanding of design concepts based on two elements. Firstly, the concept for a new product may be seen from two sides, a need/market-oriented and a design/realisationoriented. The need/market-oriented side explains the conceptual new way the design solves its task; this is the *idea with* the concept. The design/realisation side explains how the concept creates the necessary functionality and structural realisation for doing so; this Figure 4. The design concept has to articulate two ideas: the idea with and the idea in.

is the *idea in* the concept. Secondly, what is seen as conceptual depends upon what is already created in the actual area concerning solving the task or concerning the principles or design of the artefact. Thus, a concept has to articulate *a difference that matters* in the product's context.

Based on the enhanced design concept understanding we are currently developing a mindset for innovation, and we see the need to develop models to carry and articulate the *idea with* during the product development process. [135, 181]

Product service system design

A number of theories describe the necessary improvements in global environmental performance in order to maintain status quo in our eco-systems. These theories are far reaching in their ambitions



and it is not immediately apparent how we can achieve, for example, a factor 20 improvement in our environmental performance.

One attempt, however, has recently emerged, which combines the product as an artefact with the service which the product provides to the user. Through the combination of these two facets, the company retains ownership of the physical artefact and instead provides what the customer really wants – the

actual functionality from the product. This enables a series of potential improvements to the product's performance throughout its lifecycle.

Figure 5. The approach of Product Service System Design is introducing a new dimension of Integrated Product Development - the result of this is a new mindset.

A shift in focus to product service system design and development could provide the lift required for industry to overcome the barriers to considering environmental and sustainability issues in current product development processes. We have introduced an approach to environmentally conscious design focusing upon *service* as the design object, and this approach seem to support the



creation of radical environmental effects.

Platform based product development

The main characteristic of platform development is a division into a preparation phase (development of the platform) and an execution phase (application of the platform). Experience from several companies

and state-of-the-art literature shows that platform development is a means to achieve a quantum leap in company performance. Seen from a practice point of view there are also several challenges, which have to be dealt with in order to successfully implement platform based product development. Seen from a theoretical point of view, design theories are only valid for individual products

and have to be expanded to cover product families and assortment. Some of these are targeted in the research in the section. Research in platform based product development focuses on:

- Modelling of architectures, modules and interfaces
- Documentation of platforms by means of PDM systems
- Creating the foundation for decisions concerning scope and contents of platforms by means of business case principles
- Modelling and diagnosing product assortments
- Multi level road mapping

Autonomous agricultural machinery

The environmental impact of agricultural production is very much in focus, while a competitive market demands high efficiency. Many years ago, weeding was done manually without the use of pesticides. The development of an autonomous agricultural vehicle with sensors for weed detection will once again allow weeding without pesticides. The development of autonomous agricultural machinery explores this challenge by applying the knowledge of mechatronics and robotics at K&P and collaborating with external partners.



Figure 6. Platforms and modularisation as a means for multi-product development.



Figure 7. The cipu workshops "Our future depends upon..." gathered a large corporate following in 2005.

Modelling and control of non-linear dynamics systems

Most mechanical systems are actually non-linear systems. However, the majority of currently available control techniques suffer from being

mainly applicable to linear systems. This makes these methods sensitive to nonlinearities. The areas of interest in this research project are the challenges involved in applying non-linear control techniques in non-linear mechanical systems. The non-linear control methods include feedback linearization, variable structure control, adaptive control and fuzzy control.

The research framework SPACES and the cipu centre

K&P has formulated a research framework (handlingsplan) SPACES, jointly with the department of Manufacturing Engineering and Management. The individual projects which are being launched under SPACES are: Management of design processes, Effectiveness in product development, Integration of Industrial Design and Engineering design, Innovation in ECO-design, Innovation strategies and development arenas, and Competencies, learning and knowledge in design. SPACES aim to establish a national Centre for Innovation in Product Development (cipu) at DTU with a number of research institutions as partners. Currently K&P are at the head of the interim board at cipu and K&P are coordinating the concerted actions at DTU in relation to cipu.



Teaching Programme

Studying at MEK

MEK offers teaching programmes and courses at undergraduate, graduate and Ph.D. levels.

The teaching programme is very comprehensive and covers coastal engineering, naval architecture, material and structural mechanics, indoor environment, energy systems, fluid mechanics, engineering design and product development.

A reform of higher education programmes, known as the Bologna Process, was initiated at DTU in 2004. Mutual recognition of foreign qualifications is the core of the Bologna collaboration. The recognition facilitates mobility for persons with a higher education and makes further education in other European countries possible. Therefore the original 5-year master degree is being replaced by a 3-year B.Sc. degree followed by a 2-year M.Sc. degree to allow students to movement easily between countries.

Consequently, DTU now offers three separate teaching programmes in engineering in parallel. The 3.5-year B.Eng. programme, the 3-year B.Sc. programme and the 2-year M.Sc. programme.

MEK is responsible for a considerable part of the curricula's in mechanical and energy engineering as well as in design and innovation.

New teaching facilities

Prior to 2004 MEK's sections were scattered all over campus. During 2004 all the staff relocated to three adjacent buildings. New teaching facilities were established in former laboratories in the buildings and the classrooms were equipped with up-to-date teaching equipment.

The relocation has proven very successful from the



Head of Section: Peder Klit Phone: +45 4525 6267 E-mail: <u>klit@mek.dtu.dk</u> Website: <u>www.mek.dtu.dk</u>



Four students on the first semester course in Product Analysis and Communication are examining the motor for a lawn mower.



perspectives of both students and teachers. The distance between classrooms and staff offices has decreased and the degree of utilization of the facilities has increased considerably, creating an atmosphere of activity and enthusiasm.

During 2005 the teaching facilities were further improved. In two classrooms all seats were equipped with PCs, allowing the students to make simulations, analysis, modelling etc. during lectures. A new laboratory for the B.Eng. course in automation was equipped with the latest programmable controllers, making it possible for the students to simulate and to build real automation systems.

Teaching methods

A broad range of teaching methods is employed at MEK, i.e. lessons, classroom teaching, coursework, projects and laboratory experiments.

A number of our courses utilize computer analysis, simulations and CAD/CAM-modelling. Using the latest computer-based tools takes high priority, partly to provide students with the most up-to-date knowledge and partly to make our candidates attractive to industry.

For B.Eng. and B.Sc. students emphasis is placed on the use of commercial software, while M.Sc. students are trained in the use of advanced development tools.

The new curriculum in Design and Innovation

In 2002 a new curriculum in Design and Innovation was established at DTU. The departments IPL and MEK are responsible for most of the courses in the new curriculum. The feedback from the new programme is very positive.

In 2005 the number of applicants for the programme exceeded the number of places. Thanks to this new programme, DTU has attracted students who would otherwise have studied elsewhere.

Hands-on with big machines ...

Evaluation of the teaching programme

All courses are evaluated through DTU teaching intranet. The aim is to obtain input which is used to improve courses to the mutual benefit of teachers and students. As part of the evaluation process, the head of department and the department study board examines the results of the evaluation to see where improvements are required.

Professor Peter Friis Hansen, MEK, has developed a very efficient computer programme, which presents the evaluation results graphically, giving a very good overview. The continuous monitoring of the quality of teaching has proven very fruitful. Other departments at DTU are now utilizing the software in their evaluation process.

Learning achievements - from teaching to learning

A new curriculum was introduced in 2003 for the B.Eng. programme in mechanical engineering. The curriculum structure and the pedagogic/didactic idea were inspired by the CDIO initiative, which originates from a project from the technical universities in Sweden and MIT. The project objective is to reshape the mechanical engineering curricula at the contributing universities. The basic concept is problembased learning in a form called CDIO (conceive, design, implement, operate).

A further achievement in the B.Eng. programme, welcomed by many students, is the possibility of shaping the study to personal interests by combining optional courses in the last two semesters in the curriculum.

International master programmes

MEK has two international master programmes, "Wind Energy" and "Coastal and Maritime Engineering". Both programmes have attracted a considerable number of students. MEK is internationally recognized for its research activities in these fields, making it an attractive opportunity for international students to study these subjects at DTU.





Heads-on - students of Design and Innovation in deep thoughts

Teaching efficiency

The number of students at the department has increased over the last few years due to the new teaching programmes. This has lead to a significant increase in the earning of student credits per member of teaching staff. Thanks to staff efforts, this has happened while the quality of the teaching has improved.

The DTU study administration

Over the last couple of years, the study administration at DTU has introduced several new computer-based administrative tools which can be operated by the departmental administrative staff. This has improved both efficiency and quality of the administrative work at the department level significantly and promoted cooperation and the smooth running of the daily routine.



MEK Administration

MEK is a large department employing about 40 administrative staff. The Department was relocated, starting in 2004, to 3 adjacent office buildings with connected laboratories. The physical relocation of the employees into the new office space was completed by end 2004. In 2005 a major challenge has been the reorganization of technical and workshop support for the department, as well as some administrative services.

A number of smaller workshops were combined into a new MEK workshop. The workshop is located in two large laboratory halls, which were converted to a modern workshop with facilities for manual and automated mechanical treatments. The workshop includes a well-equipped room, where students can work with mechanical treatment.

Classrooms were established simultaneously with the office space in 2004. The majority of the classrooms are situated in the office buildings, but four new larger rooms were created in one of the former laboratory buildings.

During 2005 one additional room has been modernized and converted into a combined classroom and project laboratory. This laboratory is specifically created to support CDIO (Conceive, Design, Implement and Operate) related teaching. A smaller laboratory for mechatronic laboratory work has also been established.

Simultaneously with the modernization of the physical framework for employees and students, the administration is continuously working to improve the service offered to the employees.



Head of Administration: Ib Misfeldt Phone: +45 4525 1961 E-mail: ibm@mek.dtu.dk Website: www.mek.dtu.dk

Students at work in a MEK workshop



Administration



During 2005 the area undergoing the most significant changes was the accounting support.

The MEK administration is continuously involved in the general improvement of the DTU administrative workflow. MEK participated in pilot projects and work groups

Workshop and office space for workshop staff - here a member of staff is advicing students.

within accounting, electronic document management, information databases etc.



Administration







Awards

Finn Conrad: JFPS International Symposium, Distinguished Service AWARD In honour of outstanding contribution to the JFPS International FLUID POWER 2005 Signed President Shiyern IKEO Tsukura, Japan, November 10, 2005



Finn Conrad (right)

P. Ole Fanger: Honorary Member of the Society of Danish Engineers, IDA, Copenhagen, Denmark, March 8, 2005

P. Ole Fanger: Honorary Doctorate, Syracuse University, USA, May 15, 2005

P. Ole Fanger: Birch & Krogboe Prize 2005 (250.000 DKK) "for groundbreaking research of great importance for society", Copenhagen, Denmark, June 7, 2005 P. Ole Fanger: Pettenkofer Gold Medal, the highest Award of the International Academy of Indoor Air Sciences, Beijing, China, September 4, 2005

P. Ole Fanger: Honorary Professor, Harbin Institute of Technology, China, October 24, 2005

P. Ole Fanger: Honorary Medal awarded by the Technical University of Sofia at its 60 year jubilee, Sofia, Bulgaria, November 17, 2005



P. Ole Fanger (left)

Jørgen Fredsøe: Coastal Dynamics Award 2005

David R. Fuhrman: Myhrwold Foundation Ph.D. Special Achievement Award (10.000 DKK), One of two awards given for the best Ph.D. thesis completed at DTU during the 2004-5 academic year, Lyngby, Denmark, October 28, 2005.



David R. Fuhrman (left)

Steen Krenk: EASDs (European Association of Structural Dynamics) medal for excellent research, Paris, France, September 7, 2005

Arsen K. Melikov: Awarded Membership of the International Academy of Indoor Air Sciences, Beijing, China, September 4, 2005



Arsen K. Melikov (right)

Bjarne W. Olesen elected Member of Danish Academy of Technical Sciences, Copenhagen, 4 April 2005

Bjarne W. Olesen: International Honorary Member of the Japanese **Engineering Society** SHASE, Tokyo, Japan, May 17, 2005



Bjarne W. Olesen (right)

Bo Cerup Simonsen: 2005 RINA - Lloyds Register Ship Safety Award, academia category, London, United Kingdom, 26 April 2006.

Peter Strøm-Teisen: The Fanger Research Grant (25.000 DKK) from the Danish Engineering Society DANVAK, Copenhagen, Denmark, April 14, 2005

Pawel Wargocki: Rockwool Grant for Young Researchers (50.000 DKK), Copenhagen, Denmark, January 17, 2005



Peter Strøm-Tejsen (centre) Pawel Wargocki (left)



Jørn Toftum: Awarded Membership of the International Academy of Indoor Air Sciences, Beijing, China, September 4, 2005



Bo Cerup Simonsen (right)

B. Mutlu Sumer and Jørgen Fredsøe have received the 2005 Karl Emil Hilgard Hydraulic Prize, 2005.



Jørn Toftum (right)

Staff

Advisory Board

Ole Gunnerskov Karsten Okholm Larsen Leif Kristian Nielsen Peter Sunn Pedersen Vagn Rosenkilde

Faculty

Poul Kristensen Gunnar Langkilde Per Madsen Tim McAloone Arsen Krikor Melikov Knud Erik Meyer Ib Misfeldt Niels Henrik Mortensen Poul Erik Wadskjær Nielsen Christian Niordson Jan Peder Nørgaard Bjarne W. Olesen Joachim Paul Niels Leergaard Pedersen Pauli Pedersen Preben Terndrup Pedersen Bjørn Qvale John D. Restepo-Giraldo Ann Bettina Richelsen Ilmar Santos Jesper Schramm Ole Sigmund Spencer C. Sorenson B. Mutlu Sumer Jens Nørkær Sørensen Torben Sørensen Viggo Tarnow Jon Juel Thomsen	SKK IK SKK FM ADM K&P IK FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM
Viggo Tarnow	K&P
Jon Juel Thomsen Jørn Toftum	FAM IK
Viggo Tvergaard	FAM
Zhun Fan	K&P

Research staff

Jonas K. Bovin	ΕT
Benny Bøhm	ΕT
Tiago M. Cordeiro	ΕT
Martin Dixen	SKK
Brian Elmegaard	ΕT
Jan Søren Fjellerup	ΕT



David Fuhrman Luca Garre Benny Gøbel Søren Halkjær Kurt S. Hansen Figen Hatipoglu Ulrik Birk Henriksen Jens Kai Holm Jacob Hjelmager Jensen Jan Kaczmarczyk Ulrik Larsen Fang Lei Brian Nyvang Legarth Peter Lundorff Christian Lundsgaard-Larsen Jess Michelsen Robert Mikkelsen Alexandros Nøkkentved Valeri Okulov Anders Smærup Olsen Erik Sonne Ravn Jesper Riishede Søren Risvig Finn Rüdinger Wen Zhong Shen Ion M. Sivebæk Jan Sundell Christoffer Truelsen Pawel Wargocki Chen Xujun Daria O. Zukowska Stig Øye Yoon Gil Ho Kristian Hougaard	SKK SKE FAM SKE E SKE SKE SKE SKE SKE SKE SKK SKK SKE SKE SKE SKE SKE SKE SKE SKE SKE	Dalibor Cavar Stefan Carstensen Rene Hardam Christensen Martin Dixen Allan Peter Engsig-Karup Ole Fiil-Nielsen Tamás Gyöngyi Søren Halkjær Lars V. Hansen Ulf Harlou Nicolai Heilskov Niels Heinrichsen Gabriel G.M. Hernández Claus Hindsgaul Jan Riess Høgsberg Anders Ivarsson Jacob Fisker Jensen Bjarne Skovmose Kallesøe Klaus Kjølhede Morten Kvist Love Lagercrantz Lasse Langmaack Britta Lindgreen Christian Lotz-Felter Tore Lucht Lone Munk Kiril G. Naydenov Rasmus Glar Nielsen Ulrik Dam Nielsen Rasmus Pedersen Sine Leergaard Pedersen Thomas Frank Petersen Jacob Pagh Schultz Anders Veldt Søborg Adrian Ronald Tan Peter Strøm Tejsen Clara Velte Jelena Vidic-Perunovic Wei Jun Zhu	FMKKAKK FAKK KAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM FAM F
Rune Vinther Andersen Stig Kildegård Andersen	IK ET	Rasmus Christian Østergaard	FAM
Ulrik Borg	FAM		

61

Visiting researchers

Povl Ole Fanger Jun S. Fonseca Xiao Jinsong	IK FAM FM
Shinsuke Kato	IK
Poul Scheel Larsen	FM
Igor Naumov	FM
F.I. Niordson	FAM
Chen Qingyan	IK
Kirk Smith	IK
Maja Wähnström	FM
Charles Weschler	IK
David Wyon	IK

Administrative staff

Bente Brask Andersen Helen Borgen Andersen Hanne Bondorff Rene Bülow Anni Christensen Jytte Christiansen Jane Engelund Greta R.S. Eriksen Gudrun Herslund **Birgit Holm** Inge Damkjær Jørgensen Betina Kornstad Hanne Strauss Kristensen Marianne Meister Lars Henrik Mortensen Lill Mattern Nielsen **Birthe Ringtved** Lisbeth L. Schack Snjezana Skocajic Vivi Jessen Teining Helle Thyren Ruth Svane Vestergaard Judith Ørting

Technical Staff

Hans Christian Andersen Jan Baatrup Freddy Christensen Torben Bender Christensen Erik Bjørn Christiansen Kim Christoffersen Ebbe Dan Anders Danker Benny Edelsten Mogens Preben Frank Lars Borgsted Hansen Thomas Espeløv Hansen Hugo Heinicke Flemming Jensen Henning Jespersen Flemming Johansson Per Johansson Jan Larsson Torben Lyngbech Martin Krause Madsen Allan Rohlin Martensen Arne Stegemann Nielsen Dan Ferslev Nielsen Kenn Lykke Nielsen Niels H. Nielsen Per Bo Nielsen Poul Erik Nielsen Steen Nielsen Steen John Nielsen Søren Nielsen Liselotte Norup Erik Petersen Thomas Mentus Petersen Hans Jørn Poulsen Hans-Jürgen Schürmann Andreas Szekacs Ralf Tønder

Publications

Academic dissertations

[1] Nielsen, Ulrik Dam (2005) "Estimation of directional wave spectra from measured ship responses".

[2] Vidic-Perunovic, Jelena (2005) "Springing response due to bidirectional wave excitation".

[2a] Henriksen, Ulrik Birk (2005) "Termisk forgasning af biomasse: Sammenfatning af aktiviteter på DTU.

Articles in journals – ISI indexed

[3] Ahmed, Saeema. (2005), "Encouraging Reuse of Design Knowledge : A Method to Index Knowledge", *Design Studies 26, 26, 565-592.*

[4] Andersen, Poul, Anne Sophie Borrod, and Hervé Blanchot. (2005), "Evaluation of the Service Performance of Ships", *Marine Technology*, 42, 177-183.

[5] Bendsøe, Martin P., Erik Lund, Niels Olhoff and Ole Sigmund. (2005), "Topology Optimization - broadening the areas of application", *Control and Cybernetics*, 34, 7-35.

[5a] Berggreen, Carl Christian and Bo Cerup Simonsen. (2005), "Non-Uniform Compressive Strength of Debonded Sandwich Panels : II. Fracture Mechanics Investigation. *Journal of Sandwich Structures and Materials*, 7, 6, 483 -512.

[6] Bingham, Harry and Yehuda Agnon. (2005), "A Fourier-Boussinesq method for nonlinear water waves", *European journal of mechanics.B, Fluids,* 24, 255-274.

[7] Borel, Peter Ingo, Lars Hagedorn Frandsen, Anders Harpøth, Martin Kristensen, Jakob Søndergaard Jensen and Ole Sigmund. (2005), "Topology Optimised Broadband Photonic Crystal Y-Splitter", *Electronics Letters*, 41, 69-71.

[8] Bornehag, Carl Gustaf, Jan Sundell, L. Hagerhed-Engman and T. Sigsgaard. (2005), "Association between ventilation rates in 390 Swedish homes and alleric symptoms in children", *Indoor Air*, 15, 275-280.

[9] Bornehag, Carl Gustaf, B. Lundgren, Charles J. Weschler, T. Sigsgaard, L. Hagerhed-Engman and Jan Sundell. (2005), "Phthalates in Indoor Dust and Their Association with Building Characteristics", *Environmental Health Perspectives*, 113, 1399-1404. [10] Bornehag, Carl Gustaf, Jan Sundell, L. Hagerhed-Engman, T. Sigsgaard, S. Janson and N. Aborg. (2005), "Dampness" at home and its association with airway, nose and skin symptoms among 10851 preschool children in Sweden: a cross - sectional study", *Indoor Air*, 15, 48-55.

[11] Bornehag, Carl Gustaf, Jan Sundell, Charles J. Weschler and T. Sigsgaard. (2005), "Potential Selection Biases", *Environmental Health Perspectives*, 113, A152-A153.

[12] Bøhm, Benny and Halldor Kristjansson. (2005), "Single, twin and triple buried heating pipes: on potential savings in heat losses and costs", *Int.J.Energy Res.*, 29, 1301-1312.

[13] Chen, Xu jun, Jørgen Juncher Jensen, Wei-cheng Cui and Xue-feng, Tang. (2005), "Hydroelastic analysis of a very large floating plate with large deflections in stochastic seaway", *Marine Structures*, 17, 435-454, 2004.

[14] Christensen, Kim Hardam and Torben Sørensen. (2005), "Gas metal arc welding of butt joint with varying gap width based on neural networks", *International Journal for the Joining of Materials : Science and Technology of Welding & JoiningSN - 1362-1718*, 10, 32-43.

[15] Ditlevsen, Ove and Bo Källsner. (2005), "Span-Dependent Distributions of the Bending Strength of Spruce Timber", *Journal of Engineering Mechanics*, 131, 485-499.

[16] Ditlevsen, Ove and Peter Friis-Hansen. (2005), "Life quality allocation index-an equilibrium economy consistent version of the current life quality index", *Structural Safety*, 27, 262-275.

[17] Ditlevsen, Ove. (2005), "Life quality index revisited, Structural Safety, 26 (2004) 443-451 : Discussion", *Structural Safety*, 27, 279-281.

[18] Ditlevsen, Ove Dalager. (2005), "A story about estimation of a random field of boulders from incomplete seismic measurements", *Probabilistic Engineering Mechanics*, 20, 342-354.

[19] Fan, Z. H., Charles J. Weschler, I. K. Han and J. F. Zhang. (2005), "Co-formation of hydroperoxides and ultra-fine particles during the reactions of ozone with a complex VOC mixture under simulated indoor conditions", *Atmospheric Environment*, 39, 5171-5182.



64

[20] Fredsøe, Jørgen. (2005), "Calculation of dune morphology", JOURNAL OF GEOPHYSICAL RESEARCH-EARTH SURFACE, 110, -14.

[21] Fuhrman, David R., Harry Bingham, and Per A. Madsen. (2005), "Nonlinear wave-structure interactions with a high-order Boussinesq model", *Coastal Engineering*, 52, 655-672.

[22] Fuhrman, David R. and Per A. Madsen. (2005), "Potential dominance of oscillating crescent waves in finite width tanks", *Physics of Fluids*, 17, 38102-1.

[23] Georgakaki, Aliki, Robert Coffey, Grahm Lock and Spencer C. Sorenson. (2005), "Transport and Environment Database System (TRENDS): Maritime Air Pollutant Emission Modelling", *Atmospheric Environment,* 39, 2357-2365.

[24] Halkjær, Søren, Ole Sigmund, and Jakob Søndergaard Jensen. (2005), "Inverse design of photonic crystals by topology optimization", *Zeitschrifft fur Kristallographie*, 220, 895-905.

[25] Hansen, Kurt Schaldemose. (2005), "Statistical Model of Extreme Shear", *ASME Journal of Solar Energy Engineering,* 127, 444-455.

[26] Jensen, Jakob Søndergaard and Ole Sigmund. (2005), "Topology optimization of photonic crystal structures: a high-bandwidth low-loss T-junction waveguide", *JOURNAL OF THE OPTICAL SOCIETY OF AMERICA B : OPTICAL PHYSICSSN - 0740-3224, 22, 1191-1198.*

[27] Jensen, Jakob Søndergaard, Ole Sigmund, Lars Hagedorn Frandsen, Peter Ingo Borel, Anders Harpøth and Martin Kristensen. (2005), "Topology design and fabrication of an efficient double 90(circle) photonic crystal waveguide bend", *IEEE PHOTONICS TECHNOLOGY LETTERS*, 17, 1202-1204.

[28] Jensen, Jørgen Juncher. (2005), "Conditional Second Order Short-crested Water Waves Applied to Extreme Wave Episodes", *Journal of Fluid Mechanics*, 545, 29-40.

[29] Kotsalis, E. M., E. Demosthenous, Jens Honore Walther, S. C. Kassinos and P. Koumoutsakos. (2005), "Wetting of doped carbon nanotubes by water droplets", *Chemical Physics Letters*, 412, 250-254.

[30] Krenk, Steen. (2005), "Frequency analysis of the tuned mass damper", *Journal of Applied Mechanics*, 72, 936-942.

[31] Krenk, Steen and Jan Riess Høgsberg. (2005), "Damping of cables by a transverse force", *Journal of Engineering Mechanics*, 131, 340-348.

[32] Krenk, Steen and Jan Riess Høgsberg. (2005), "Properties of time integration with first order filter damping", *International Journal for Numerical Methods in Engineering*, 64, 547-566.

[33] Lazarov, Boyan Stefanov and Ove Ditlevsen. (2005), "Slepian simulation of distributions of plastic displacements of earthquake excited shear frames with a large number of stories", *Probabilistic Engineering Mechanics*, 20, 251-262.

[34] Legarth, Brian Nyvang. (2005), "Effects of geometrical anisotropy on failure in a plastically anisotropic metal", *Engineering Fracture Mechanics*, 72, 2792-2807.

[35] Madsen, Per A., Hans Jacob Simonsen, and Cun Hong Pan. (2005), "Numerical simulation of tidal bores and hydraulic jumps", *Coastal Engineering*, 52, 655-672.

[36] Main, Joseph A. and Steen Krenk. (2005), "Efficiency and tuning of viscous dampers on discrete systems", *Journal of Sound and Vibration*, 286, 97-122.

[37] Melikov, Arsen Krikor, G. Pitchurov, Kiril Georgiev Naydenov and Gunnar Langkilde. (2005), "Field study of occupants thermal comfort in rooms with displacement ventilation", *Indoor Air*, 15, 205-214.

[38] Nilsson, A., V. Lagesson, Carl Gustaf Bornehag, Jan Sundell and C. Tagesson. (2005), "Quantitative determination of volatile organic compounds in indoor dust using gas chromatography-UV spectrometry", *Environment International*, 31, 1141-1148.

[39] Niordson, Christian Frithiof and Viggo Tvergaard. (2005), "Instabilities in power law gradient hardening materials", *International Journal of Solids and Structures*, 42, 2559-2573.

[40] Nøkkentved, Alexandros, Christian Lundsgaard-Larsen, and Carl Christian Berggreen. (2005), "Non-Uniform Compressive Strength of Debonded Sandwich Panels : I. Experimental Investigation", *Journal of Sandwich Structures and Materials*, 7, 461-482.

[41] Okulov, Valery L., Jens Nørkær Sørensen and Lars K. Voigt. (2005), "Vortex scenario and bubble generation in a cylindrical cavity with rotating top and bottom", *European Journal of Mechanics B/Fluids*, 24, 137-148.

[42] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "The European Energy Performance of Buildings Directive (EPBD)", *HVAC&R Research*, 11, -5.

[43] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "Vertically integrated systems in stand-alone multistory buildings", *ASHRAE Journal*, 47, 48-53.

66

[44] Ôzcan, O., Knud Erik Meyer, and Arsen Krikor Melikov. (2005), "A visual description of the convective flow field around the head of a human", *Journal of Visualization*, 8, 23-31.

[45] Deleted

[46] Özcan, Oktay, Knud Erik Meyer, and Poul Scheel Larsen. (2005), "Measurement of mean rotation and strain-rate tensors by using stereoscopic PIV", *Experiments in Fluids,* 39, 771-783.

[47] Pedersen, Niels Leergaard. (2005), "Designing plates for minimum internal resonance", *Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization*, 30, 297-307.

[48] Pedersen, Pauli. (2005), "Axisymmetric analytical stiffness matrices with Green-Lagrange strains", *Computational Mechanics*, 35, 227-235.

[49] Pedersen, Pauli. (2005), "Analytical stiffness matrices with Green-Lagrange strain measure", *Int.J.Numer.Meth.Engng.*, 62, 334-352.

[50] Pedersen, Pauli and Niels Leergaard Pedersen. (2005), "An optimality criterion for shape optimization in eigenfrequency problems", *Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization*, 29, 457-469.

[51] Riisgård, Hans Ulrik and Poul Scheel Larsen. (2005), "Water flow analysis and particle capture in ciliary filter-feeding scallops (Pectinidae)", *Marine Ecology Progress Series*, 303, 177-193.

[52] Riisgård, Hans Ulrik and Poul Scheel Larsen. (2005), "Water pumping and analysis of flow in burrowing zoobenthos - a short overview", *Aquatic Ecology*, 39, 237-258.

[53] Roulund, Andreas, B. Mutlu Sumer, Jørgen Fredsøe and Jess Michelsen. (2005), "Numerical and experimental investigation of flow and scour around a circular pile", *J.Fluid Mechanics*, 534, 351-401.

[54] Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Design of active controlled rotor-blade systems based on time-variant modal analysis", *Journal of Sound and Vibration*, 280, 863-882.

[55] Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Frequency Response Analysis of an Actively Lubricated Rotor/Tilting-Pad Bearing System", *ASME Trans., Journal of Engineering for GasTurbine and Power*, 127, 638-645.

56] Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Modal Controllability and Observability of Bladed Discs and their Dependency on the Angular Velocity", *Journal of Vibration and Control,* 11, 801-828.

[57] Sekhar, S. C., Nan Gong, Kwok Wai Tham, K. W. Cheong, Arsen Krikor Melikov, David Wyon and Poul Ole Fanger. (2005), "Findings of personalized ventilation studies in a hot and humid climate", *International Journal of Heating, Ventilation and Refrigeration Research (HVAC&R Research),* 11, 603-620.

[58] Shen, Wen Zhong, Jens Nørkær Sørensen, and Robert Flemming Mikkelsen. (2005), "Tip Loss Correction for Actuator/Navier-Stokes Computations", *Journal of Solar Energy Engineering*, 127, 209-213.

[59] Shen, Wen Zhong, Robert Flemming Mikkelsen, Jens Nørkær Sørensen and Christian Bak. (2005), "Tip loss corrections for wind turbine computations", *Wind Energy*, 8, 457-475.

[60] Simonsen, Bo Cerup. (2005), "Non-Uniform Compressive Strength of Debonded Sandwich Panels : II. Fracture Mechanics Investigation", *Journal of Sandwich Structures and Materials*, 7, 483-512.

[61] Sumer, B. Mutlu and Klavs Bundgaard. (2005), "Global and local scour at pile groups", *International Journal of Offshore and Polar Engineering*, 15, 204-209.

[62] Sumer, B. Mutlu, Jørgen Fredsøe, Alberto Lamberti, Barbara Zanuttigh, Martin Dixen, Kjartan Gislason and A.F. De Penta. (2005), "Local scour at roundhead and along the trunk of low crested structures", *Coastal Engineering*, 52, 995-1025.

[63] Tarnow, Viggo. (2005), "Dynamic measurements of the elastic constants of glass wool", *J.Acoust.Soc.Am.*, 118, 3672-3678.

[64] Têtu, A., M. Kristensen, Lars Hagedorn Frandsen, Anders Harpøth, Peter Ingo Borel, Jakob Søndergaard Jensen and Ole Sigmund (2005), "Broadband topologyoptimized photonic crystal components for both TE and TM polarizations", *Optics Express*, 13, 8606-8611.

[64a] Thomsen, Jon Juel. (2005), "Slow High-Frequency Effects in Mechanics: Problems, Solutions, Potentials", *International Journal of Bifurcation and Chaos*, 15, 2799-2818.

[65] Truelsen, Christoffer, B. Mutlu Sumer, and Jørgen Fredsøe. (2005), "Scour around spherical bodies and self-burial", *Journal of Waterway, Port, Coastal and Ocean Engineering, ASCE*, 131, 1-13.



68

[66] Tvergaard, Viggo and Allan Needleman. (2005), "Weld investigations by 3D analyses of Charpy V-notch specimens", *Latin American J.of Solids and Structures*, 2, 103-112.

[67] Tvergaard, Viggo. (2005), "Overload effects in fatigue crack growth by crack-tip blunting", *Int.J.Fatigue*, 27, 1389-1397.

[67a] Vidic-Perunovic, J. and J.J. Jensen. (2005), "Non-linear Springing Excitation Due to a Bi-directional Wave Field", Marine Structures, 18, No.4, 332-358.

[68] Wang, Jiachuan, Zhun Fan, Janis Terpenny and Erik Goodman. (2005), "Knowledge Interaction with Genetic Programming in Mechatronic Systems Design Using Bond Graphs", *IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man and Cybernetics, Part C: Applications and Reviews, : Special Issue on Knowledge Extraction and Incorporation in Evolutionary ComputationVL - 35,* 172-182.

[69] Yang, L., Y. Wang, T. Lui, T. D. Hu, B. X. Li, Kenny Ståhl, S. Y. Chen, M. Y. Li, P. Shen, G. L. Lu, Y. W. Wang and Jianzhong Jiang. (2005), "Copper position in Type-I Ba8Cu4Si24 clathrate", *Journal of Solid State Chemistry*, 178, 1772-1776.

[70] Yuksel, Y., K.O. Cetin, O. Ozguven, N.S. Isik, E. Cevik, Mutlu B. Sumer, (2005) "Seismic response of a rubble mound breakwater in Turkey", *Maritime Engineering*, 157, 151-161, 2004.

[71] Zhu, Wei Jun, Nicolai Heilskov, Wen Zhong Shen and Jens Nørkær Sørensen. (2005), "Modeling of Aerodynamically Generated Noise From Wind Turbines", *Journal of Solar Energy Engineering*, 127, 517-528.

[72] Bredmose H., Yehuda, Agnon, Per A. Madsen, and Hemming A. Schäffer. (2005), "Wave transformation models with exact second-order transfer", *European Journal of Mechanics B/Fluids*, 24, 659-682.

Articles in journals - not ISI indexed

[73] Andersen, Nils Axel, Ian David Braithwaite, Torben Sørensen and Mogens Blanke. (2005), "Udvikling af sensorsystem for robotbaseret rengøring af svinestalde", *Dira Nyt*, 23, 9-13.

[74] Andersen, Poul, Jürgen Friesch, Jens J. Kappel, Lars Lundegaard and Graham Patience. (2005), "Development of a Marine Propeller With Nonplanar Lifting Surfaces", *Marine Technology*, 42, 144-158.

[75] Bøhm, Benny. (2005), "Single, twin and triple buried heating pipes on pontential

savings in heat losses and costs", *International Journal of Energy Research,* 29, 1301-1312.

[76] Bøhm, Benny and Helge V. Larsen. (2005), "Simple modeller for fjernvarmesystemer med henblik på belastningsudjævning og driftsoptimering", *Fjernvarmen*, 8, 26-28.

[77] Bøhm, Benny, M. Wigbels, K. Sipilä, B. Smith Hansen, G. Jensen and A. Madsen. (2005), "Dynamisk Varme Lagring i nettet og Demand Side Management i bygninger", *Fjernvarmen,* 30-33.

[78] Hansen, Kurt Schaldemose and Knud Ole Helgesen Pedersen. (2005), "An MSc Course Module: Wind Turbine Measurement Techniques", *Wind Engineering : The international journal of wind powerSN - 0309-524X,* 29, 183-185.

[79] Hansen, Kurt Schaldemose. (2005), "Characterising Turbulence Intensity for Fatigue Load Analysis of Wind Turbines", *WIND ENGINEERING*, 29, 319-329.

[80] Knudsen, Hans Jørgen Høgaard. (2005), "Sammenligning af energiforbrug i supermarkeder", *ScanRef : Scandinavian Refrigeration - Energy -Food SN - 0284-0758*, 34, 56-59.

[81] Lenau, Torben, Per Boelskifte, and Claus Thorp Hansen. (2005), "Impressions from the 3rd Nordcode Seminar & Workshop", *UIAH Working Papers*, F30, 7-10.

[82] Lenau, Torben and Per Boelskifte. (2005), "Products search through the use of semantic properties - report from the experiment at Kunstindustrimuseet", *UIAH Working Papers*, F30, 11-23.

[83] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "Regeling van termisch actieve betonconstructies", *Klimatechniek*, 780-787.

[84] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "A new European energy directive for energy performance of buildings", *SHASE*, 79, 51-55.

[85] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "The Europwan Energy Performance of Buildings Directive (EPBD)", *SHASE Journal*, 79, 51-56.

[86] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "Nemzetközi szabványok a belsö környezetröl : Hol tartunk és a világon mindenütt használhatók-e ezek a szabványok?", *Magyar Épületgépészet : (Haus Technik)VL - 7,* 3-8.

[87] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "Gaiss iekstelpas", *E&P Energua un Pasaule*, 4, 74-79.



70
[88] Olsen, Anders Smærup, Carsten Schrøter, and Jørgen Juncher Jensen. (2005), "Wave Height Distribution Observed by Ships in the North Atlantic", *Ships and Offshore Structures*, 1, 1-12.

[89] Paik, J. K., J. Y. Chung, I. H. Choe, A. K. Thayamballi and Preben Terndrup Pedersen. (2005), "On the Rational Design of Double Hull Tanker Structures Against Collision", *HHI Engineering Review*, 25, 41-51.

[90] Schramm, Jesper. (2005), "Hydrogen and DME as Vehicle Fuels", *Grøn Hverdag*, 3, 20-21.

[91] Soraperra, Giusepe. (2005), "Design of wind turbines for non-standard air density", *Wind Engineering : The international journal of wind powerSN - 0309-524X,* 29, 115-129.

[92] Sumer, B. Mutlu and Jørgen Fredsøe. (2005), "Subsea Structures, Research on hydrodynamic processes at/around, at Coastal, Maritime & Structural Engineering Section, Technical University of Denmark", *ON/OFF : Newsletter to the offshore industry in DenmarkPB - Offshore Center Denmark,* 7, 11.

[93] Sørensen, Torben. (2005), "Tema om servicerobotter : Indledende artikel om servicerobotter", *Dira Nyt*, 23, 6-8.

[94] Sørensen, Torben. (2005), "Ny servicerobot til landbruget : Den autonome landbrugsmedhjælper", *Dira Nyt*, 23, 16-18.

[95] Sørensen, Torben. (2005), "Undervisning i robotteknologi på Danmarks Tekniske Universitet, DTU", *Dira Nyt,* 23, 9-11.

[96] Troldborg, Niels. (2005), "Computational study of the Risø-B1-18 airfoil with a hinged flap providing variable trailing edge geometry", *Wind Engineering : The international journal of wind powerSN - 0309-524X,* 29, 89-113.

[97] Wargocki, Pawel and R. Djukanovic. (2005), "Simulations of the potential revenue from investment in improved indoor air quality in an office building", *ASHRAE Transactions*, 111, 699-711.

[98] Wigbels, M., Benny Bøhm, and K. Sipilä. (2005), "Operational Optimisation : Dynamic Heat Storage and Demand Side Management Strategies", *Euro Heat & Power : English Edition IIEP - 58-61*.

[99] Wisthaler, Armin, Gyöngyi Tamás, David P. Wyon, Peter Strøm-Tejsen, David Space, Jonathan Beauchamp, Armin Hansel, Tillmann D. Märk and Charles J. Weschler. (2005), "Products of Ozone-Initiated Chemistry in a Simulated Aircraft

Environment", Environmental Science & Technology, 39, 4823-4832.

[100] Zhu, Wei Jun, Jens Nørkær Sørensen, and Wen Zhong Shen. (2005), "An aerodynamic noise propagation model for wind turbines", *Wind Engineering : The international journal of wind powerSN - 0309-524X, 29, 129-143.*

Articles in international conference proceedings with referee

[101] Ahmed, Saeema, Hacker, Paul, and Wallace, Ken M. (2005), "The Role of Knowledge and Experience in Engineering Design". In: Proceedings of Engineering Design and the Global Economy : International Conference on Engineering Design ; Volume 1, Melbourne.

[102] Ahmed, Saeema, Kim, Sanghee, and Wallace, Ken. (2005), "A Methodology for Creating Ontologies for Engineering Design : DETC2005-8479". In: Proceedings of American Society Mechanical Engineers International Design Engineering Technical Conferences & Computers and Information in Engineering Conference : Computing in Information Engineering, Long Beach, CA, USA.

[103] Ahrenfeldt, Jesper, Henriksen, Ulrik Birk, Jensen, Torben Kvist, and Schramm, Jesper. (2005), "Investigation of Continuous Gas Engine CHP Operation on Biomass Producer Gas". In: Proceedings of SAE Technical Papers : Document Number: 2005-01-3778, Powertrain & Fluid Systems Conference & Exhibition, October 2005, San Antonio, TX, USA.

[104] Andersen, Stig Møller, Pedersen, Søren Thåning, Gøbel, Benny, Houbak, Niels, Henriksen, Ulrik Birk, and Bentzen, Jens D. (2005), "Pyrolysis of thermally thick wood particles - experiments and mathematical modelling". In: Proceedings of ECOS 2005, NTNU, Trondheim, Norway.

[105] Andersen, Torben Ole, Hansen, Michael Rygaard, Pedersen, Henrik C., and Conrad, Finn. (2005), "FEEDBACK LINEARISATION APPLIED ON A HYDRAULIC". In: Proceedings of 6th International Symposium on FLUID POWER 2005, TSUKUBA, Japan.

[106] Andersen, Torben Ole, Hansen, Michael Rygaard, Pedersen, Henrik C., and Conrad, Finn. (2005), "COMPARISON OF LINEAR CONTROLLERS FOR A". In: Proceedings of 6th International Symposium on FLUID POWER 2005.

[107] Bako-Biro, Zsolt, Wargocki, Pawel, Wyon, David, and Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005), "Poor indoor air quality slows down metabolic rate of office workers". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.



[108] Bako-Biro, Zsolt, Weschler, Charles J., Wargocki, Pawel, and Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005), "Effects of indoor pollution sources and ventilation rate on ozone's surface removal rate and the occurrence of oxygenated VOCs in an office space". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.

[109] Barna, Edith, Wargocki, Pawel, and Sundell, Jan. (2005) "Objective methods for measuring effects of low dose exposures on humans indoors". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, The 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate, Beijing, China.

[110] Beko, Gabriel, Tamas, Gyöngyi, Halas, Oto, Clausen, Geo, and Weschler, Charles J. (2005), "Ultra-fine particles as indicators of the generation of oxidized products on the surface of used air filters". In: Proceedings of 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate, 2-9 September, Beijing, China.

[111 Berggreen, Carl Christian and Simonsen, Bo Cerup. (2005), "Residual Strength of In-plane Loaded Debonded Sandwich Panels : Fracture Mechanical Modelling". In: Proceedings of Sandwich Structures 7 : Advancing with Sandwich, Aalborg University, Denmark.

[112] Boelskifte, Per. (2005), "Design & Innovation : Developing a Curriculum for Future Design Engineers at the Technical University of Denmark". In: Proceedings of Crossing Design Boundaries, Napier University, Edinburgh, UK.

[113] Borghi, Massimo, Milani, Massimo, and Conrad, Finn. (2005), "Mechanical Cushion Design Influence on Cylinder Dynamics". In: Proceedings of 2005 SAE Commercial Vehicle Engineering Conference : SAE Book SP-1989: Simulation and Optimization: System Level, Component Level, Advanced Technology/Methodology ; Simulation and Optimization Part 2 Component Level, USA.

[114] Christensen, Rene Hardam and Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Control of Rotor-Blade Coupled Vibrations using Shaft-Based Actuation". In: Proceedings of The XI International Conference on Dynamic Problems in Mechanics, Ouro Preto, Brazil.

[115] Clausen, Geo and Wyon, David. (2005), "The combined effects of many different indoor environmental factors on acceptability and office work performance". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.

[116] Clausen, Peter Michael and Sigmund, Ole. (2005), "The pressure load problem re-visited". In: Proceedings of IUTAM Symposium: topoptSYMP2005 : Topological design optimization of structures, machines and materials - status and perspectives.

[117] Conrad, Finn. (2005), "Simulink and CATIA for Modelling, Simulation and

Design". In: Proceedings of Reseach and Education in Mechatronics - REM 2005, Annecy, France.

[118] Conrad, Finn. (2005), "TRENDS IN DESIGN OF WATER HYDRAULICS : MOTION CONTROL AND OPEN-ENDED SOLUTIONS". In: Proceedings of 6th JFPS International Symposium on FLUID POWER 2005, TSUKUBA, Japan.

[119] Conrad, Finn. (2005), "CDIO-CONCEPT FOR ENGINEERING EDUCATION". In: Proceedings of 6th JFPS International Symposium on FLUID POWER 2005, TSUKUBA.

[120] Conrad, Finn and Roli, Francesco. (2005), "MECHATRONICS SYSTEM ENGINEERING FOR". In: Proceedings of 6th International Symposium on FLUID POWER 2005, TSUKUBA, Japan.

[121] Der Kiureghian, Armen, Ditlevsen, Ove Dalager, and Song, Junho. (2005), "Systems with randomly failing repairable components". In: Proceedings of Ninth International Conference on Structural Safety and Reliability, Rome.

[122] Ditlevsen, Ove. (2005), "SORM correction of FORM results for the FBC load combination problem". In: Proceedings of Ninth International Conference on Structural Safety and Reliability, Rome.

[123] Elmegaard, Brian, Szameitat, Nicklas, and Brix, Wiebke. (2005), "Compressed air energy storage (CAES) - possibilities in Denmark". In: Proceedings of ECOS 2005, Trondheim, Norway.

[124] Elmegaard, Brian and Houbak, Niels. (2005), "DNA – A General Energy System Simulation Tool". In: Proceedings of SIMS 2005 : 46th Conference on Simulation and Modeling, Trondheim, Norway.

[125] Fan, Zhun, Sørensen, Torben, Conrad, Finn, Andreasen, Mogens Myrup, Christensen, Georg Kronborg, and Hein, Lars. (2005), "Mechatronics Education: Conceptual Prototype vs. Physical Realization". In: Proceedings of 6th International Workshop on Research and Education in Mechatronics (REM) : June 30th - July 1st 2005, Annecy-FRANCE under the auspices of IEEE.

[126] Fan, Zhun, Wang, Jiachuan, and Goodman, Erik. (2005), "An Evolutionary Approach for Robust Layout Synthesis of MEMS". In: Proceedings of IEEE/ASME International Conference on Advanced Intelligent Mechatronics.

[127] Fan, Zhun, Sørensen, Torben, Andreasen, Mogens Myrup, Christensen, Georg Kronborg, and Hein, Lars. (2005), "Mechatronics Education: Conceptual Prototype

vs. Physical Realization". In: Proceedings of 6th International Workshop on Research and Education in Mechatronics (REM) 2005.

[128] Fan, Zhun, Hein, Lars, Andreasen, Mogens Myrup, and Eynard, Benoit. (2005), "Design Oriented Training of Mechatronic Engineers". In: Proceedings of Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society Annual Conference.

[129] Fang, Lei, Zhang, Ge, and Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005), "Experimental investigation of the air cleaning effect of a desiccant dehumidifier on perceived air quality". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing China.

[130] Fang, Lei. (2005), "Impact of Indoor Air Temperature, Humidity and Ventilation Rate on Human Comfort and Productivity". In: Proceedings of Xiangshan Scientific Congress, Beijing, China.

[131] Fanger, P. Ole. (2005), "What is IAQ?". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.

[132] Fiil-Nielsen, Ole, Munk, Lone, and Mortensen, Niels Henrik. (2005) "Preparing for a Product Platform : Product Family Hierarchy Procedure". In: Proceedings of 15th International Conference on Engineering Design : Engineering Design and the Global Economy, Melbourne, Australia.

[133] Gerardin, R. C., Oliveira, F. L. M., Bittencourt, M. L., and Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Dynamic Modelling of Crank Mechanism and Hydrodynamic Bearings of Internal Combustion Engines". In: Proceedings of 18th International Congress on Mechanical Engineering.

[134] Gersborg-Hansen, Allan, Bendsøe, Martin P., and Sigmund, Ole. (2005), "Topology optimization using the finite volume method". In: Proceedings of 6th World Congress on Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.

[135] Hansen, Claus Thorp and Andreasen, Mogens Myrup. (2005), "On the content of a product idea". In: Proceedings of Engineering design and the global economy : 15th International conference on engineering design ; CD-ROM, Melbourne, Australia.

[136] Haugen, Gry Karin, Conrad, Finn, and Grahl-Madsen, Mads. (2005), "INNOVATIVE NEW ROV TECHNOLOGY". In: Proceedings of 6th JFPS International Symposium of FLUID POWER 2005, TSUKUBA, Japan.

[137] Hayman, Brian, Berggreen, Carl Christian, and Pettersson, Robert. (2005), "The Influence of Face Sheet Wrinkle Defects on the Performance of FRP Sandwich Structures". In: Proceedings of Sandwich Structures 7 : Advancing with Sandwich, Aalborg University, Denmark.

[138] Hein, Lars. (2005) "IMPACT OF RESEARCH IN ENGINEERING DESIGN ON INDUSTRIAL INNOVATION". In: Proceedings of International Conference on Engineering Design 2005 : Melbourne ; 1.

[139] Heinrichson, Niels and Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Comparison of Models for Steady-State Analysis of Tilting-Pad Thrust Bearings". In: Proceedings of 18th International Congress on Mechanical Engineering.

[140] Hummelgarrd, John, Juhl, Peter, Sæbjörnsson, Kristian, Clausen, Geo, Toftum, Jørn, and Langkilde, Gunnar. (2005), "Indoor air quality and occupant satisfaction in five mechanically and four naturally ventilated open-plan office buildings". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.

[141] Jamois, Eric, Fuhrman, David R., Bingham, Harry, and Molin, Bernard. (2005), "Oblique wave interaction with reflective structures by a high-order velocity potential Boussinesq-type model". In: Proceedings of 20th International Workshop on Water Waves and Floating Bodies, Longyearbyen, Norway.

[142] Jensen, Jacob Fisker, Schultz, Jacob Pagh, Berggreen, Carl Christian, and Branner, Kim. (2005), "Application of Load Carrying Sandwich Elements in Wind Turbine Blades". In: Proceedings of Sandwich Structures 7 : Advancing with Sandwich, Aalborg University, Denmark.

[143] Jensen, Jakob Søndergaard and Sigmund, Ole. (2005), "Systematic design of acoustic devices by topology optimization". In: Proceedings of Twelfth International Congress on Sound and Vibration, Lisbon, Portugal.

[144] Jensen, Jakob Søndergaard and Sigmund, Ole. (2005), "Topology Optimization of Building Blocks for Photonic Integrated Circuits". In: Proceedings of 6th World Congress on Structural and Multidiscplinary Optimization, Rio de Janeiro, Brasil.

[145] Jensen, Jørgen Juncher. (2005) "Abnormal Waves Modelled as Secondorder Conditional Waves". In: Proceedings of Design and Operational for Abnormal Conditions III, London, UK.

[146] Jensen, Jørgen Juncher and Mansour, Alaa E. (2005), "Estimation of Impulsive Wave-induced Loads on a FPSO". In: Proceedings of Safety and Reliability of Engineering Systems and Structures, Rome, Italy.

[147] Jensen, Kasper Lynge. (2005), "Acoustical quality in office workstations, as



assed by occupant surveys". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005 : Proceedings of the 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate ; 2 / 2,

[148] Jolma, Perttu, Segercrantz, Sebastian, and Berggreen, Carl Christian. (2005), "Experimental Investigation and Fracture Mechanical Modelling of Debonded Sandwich Panels Loaded with Lateral Pressure". In: Proceedings of Sandwich Structures 7 : Advancing with Sandwich, Aalborg University, Denmark.

[149] Joung, Young Soo, Yoon, Gil Ho, and Kim, Yoon Young. (2005), "Lumped Mass Modeling for Local-Mode-Suppressed Element Connectivity". In: Proceedings of 6th World Congress on Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.

[150] Jørgensen, Ulrik and Boelskifte, Per. (2005), "Design & Innovation - Developing a curriculum for future design engineers at the Technical University of Denmark". In: Proceedings of Engineering Product Design Education Conference, Edinburgh.

[151 Kolarik, J. and Wargocki, Pawel. (2005), "Effect of photocatalytic air purifier on perceived indoor air quality". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, The 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate, Beijing, China.

[152] Krenk, Steen. (2005), "High-accuracy phase-space time ingtegration with energy control". In: Proceedings of 6'th International Conference on Structural Dynamics : EURODYN 2005 ; 3, Paris.

[153] Krenk, Steen, Brønden, Anders, and Kristensen, Anders. (2005), "Placement and tuning of resonance dampers on footbridges". In: Proceedings of Footbridge 2005 : 2nd International Conference ; Abstract Book and CD ROM, Venice.

[154] Kristensen, Martin, Borel, Peter Ingo, Frandsen, Lars Hagedorn, Harpøth, Anders, Jensen, Jakob Søndergaard, and Sigmund, Ole. (2005), "Optimized planar photonic crystal waveguide 60° bend with more than 200 nm wide 1-dB transmission bandwidth". In: Proceedings of OFC/NFOEC Technical Digest CD-ROM, Anaheim, California, USA.

[155] Kvist, Morten. (2005) "Method for alignment of product and production concepts". In: Proceedings of International Conference on Engineering Design and the Global Economy, Melbourne, Australia.

[156] Kvist, Morten, Pedersen, Rasmus, and Mortensen, Niels Henrik. (2005), "Method for creating and visualizing product architectures". In: Proceedings of PDMA Research Forum 2005 : Managing innovation in the global context, San Diego, California, USA. [157] Lagercrantz, Love Per, Famula, Basia, and Sundell, Jan. (2005), "Nitric oxide in exhaled and aspirated nasal air as an objective measure of human response to isopropanol oxidation products and pthtalate esters in indoor air". In: Proceedings of INDOOR AIR 2005, the 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate.

[158] Langelaar, Matthijs, Yoon, Gil Ho, Kim, Yoon Young, and Keulen, Fred van. (2005), "Topology Optimization of Shape Memory Alloy Actuators using Element Connectivity Parameterization". In: Proceedings of 6th World Congress on Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization, Rio de Janeiro, Brasil.

[159] Legarth, Brian Nyvang. (2005), "Failure in imperfect anisotropic materials". In: Proceedings of Dislocations, Plasticity, Damage and Metal Forming: Material Response and Multiscale Modeling, Hawaii.

[160] Lenau, Torben. (2005), "Verbal communication of semantic content in products". In: Proceedings of Nordes Conference "In The Making", Thomas Binder m.fl, København.

[161] Lundsgaard-Larsen, Christian, Nøkkentved, Alexandros, and Berggreen, Carl Christian. (2005), "Residual Strength of In-plane Loaded Debonded Sandwich Panels : Experimental Investigation". In: Proceedings of Sandwich Structures 7 : Advancing with Sandwich, Aalborg University, Denmark.

[162] McAloone, Timothy Charles and Tan, Adrian Ronald. (2005), "Sustainable product development through a life-cycle approach to product and service creation : An exploration of the extended responsibilities and possibilities for product developers". In: Proceedings of Eco-X Conference : Ecology and Economy in Electronix ; CD-ROM, Vienna, Austria.

[163] McAloone, Timothy Charles. (2005), "Industrial integration of environmental issues into the organisation : Past, present & future challenges". In: Proceedings of Engineering design and the global economy : 15th International conference on engineering design ; CD-ROM, Melbourne, Australia.

[164] Mortensen, Niels Henrik. (2005), "Identification of platform levels". In: Proceedings of International Conference on Engineering Design (ICED05), Melbourne, Australia.

[165] Munk, Lone. (2005) "Preparing for a product platform - product family hierachy procedure". In: Proceedings of International Conference on Engineering Design : Engineering Design and The Global Economy, Melbourne, Australia.



[166] Nielsen, Ulrik Dam. (2005), "Estimation of Directional Wave Spectra from Measured Ship Responses". In: Proceedings of Maritime Transportation and Exploitation of Ocean and Coastal Resources : Exploitation of Ocean and Coastal Resources ; 2,

[167] Nishihara, Naoe, Wargocki, Pawel, Wyon, David, Tanabe, Shin ichi, and Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005), "Cerebral blood flow, fatigue, mental effort and task performance in an office with two different pollution loads". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.

[168] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005) "Variability of Clothing According to External Temperature". In: Proceedings of 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate,

[169] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005), "Criteria for the Indoor Environment as regards energy performance of buildings - A new European Standard". In: Proceedings of 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate,

[170] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005) "International Standards and Clothing". In: Proceedings of The Third International Conference on Human-Environment System, Global Environment and Quality of Life (ICHES 2005).

[171] Pedersen, Niels Leergaard. (2005) "Eigenfrequency Optimization of Fiber Reinforced Plates using Optimality Criteria and Mathematical Programming". In: Proceedings of CD-rom Proceedings of WCSMO6, Rio de Janairo, Brazil.

[172] Pedersen, Niels Leergaard. (2005) "Avoiding internal resonance in plates by optimal design". In: Proceedings of CD-rom Proceedings of ICSV12, Lisbon, Portugal.

[173] Pedersen, Pauli, Araujo, A. L., Soares, C. M. M., and Herskovits, J. (2005) "An Inverse Method for Parameter Estimation in Active Laminated Structures". In: Proceedings of CD-rom proceedings of WCSMO6, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.

[174] Pedersen, Pauli. (2005), "Energy distributions in vibrational eigenmodes". In: Proceedings of CD-rom proceedings of ICSV12, Lisbon, Portugal.

[175] Pedersen, Rasmus, Kvist, Morten, and Mortensen, Niels Henrik. (2005), "Method for alignment of product and production concepts". In: Proceedings of International Conference on Engineering Design : Proceedings of 2005, Melbourne Grand Hyatt Hotel, Australia.

[176] Pedersen, Rasmus. (2005), "Method for creating and visualizing product

architectures". In: Proceedings of PDMA Research Forum : Managing innovation in the global context ; Year 2005, Paradise Point Beach Resort, San Diego, USA.

[177] Petersen, Thomas Frank, Houbak, Niels, and Elmegaard, Brian. (2005), "Development of a zero-dimensional model of a 2nd generation planar SOFC with empirical calibration of electrochemical parameters". In: Proceedings of ECOS 2005, Trondheim, Norway.

[178] Qvale, Einar Bjørn. (2005), "Procedures for Efficient and Economic Recovery of Heat for Reuse in Batch Processes for Cleaning". In: Proceedings of The 18.th International Conference on Efficiency, Cost, Optimization, Simulation and Environmental Impact of Energy Systems, Trondheim, Norway.

[179] Restrepo-Giraldo, John Dairo. (2005), "From Function to Context to Form: Precedents and Focus Shifts in the Form Creation Process". In: Proceedings of Transactions of the Asociation for Computing Machinery ACM, Goldsmith College, London.

[180] Sakr, Wafa, Weschler, Charles J., and Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005), "Sorptive interactions among building materials and their resultant impact on perceived indoor air quality". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.

[181] Salonen, Mikko, Hansen, Claus Thorp, and Perttula, Matti. (2005), "Evolution of property predictability during conceptual design". In: Proceedings of Engineering design and the global economy : 15th International conference on engineering design ; CD-ROM, Melbourne, Australia.

[182] Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Active Lubrication for Eliminating Instability Problems in Rotating Machines". In: Proceedings of III World Tribology Conference, Washington DC, USA.

[183] Santos, Ilmar and Christensen, B. F. (2005), "Characterization of Oil Film Control Forces under Active Lubrication Regime". In: Proceedings of III World Tribology Conference, Washington DC, USA.

[184] Schramm, Jesper, Knudsen, Christian, Mandrupsen, Morten, and Thorhauge, Kasper. (2005), "Emissions from a Moped Fuelled by Gasoline/Ethanol Mixtures". In: Proceedings of 15th International Symposium on Alcohol Fuels (ISAF XV), San Diego CA, USA.

[185] Scolari, Lara, Alkeskjold, Thomas Tanggaard, Riishede, Jesper, Nielsen, Martin Dybendal, Hermann, David Sparre, Anawati, A., and Bassi, Paolo. (2005), "Electrically controllable liquid crystal photonic bandgap fiber with dual-frequency



80

control". In: Proceedings of IEEE Workshop on Fibres and Optical Passive Components, Palermo, Italy.

[186] Skorek, A., Wargocki, Pawel, and Wisthaler, A. (2005) "The effect of reducing pollution sources and photocatalytic air purifier quantified with proton-transferreaction mass spectrometry". In: Proceedings of the International Conference on Energy Efficient Technologies in Indoor Environment, Silesian University of Technology, Gliwice, Poland.

[187] Sorenson, Spencer C., Hendricks, Elbert, Masnusson, Sigurjon, and Bertelsen, Allan. (2005), "Compact and Accurate Turbocharger Modelling for Engine Control". In: Proceedings of SAE INTERNATIONAL CONGRESS AND EXPOSITION, DETROIT, MICHIGAN USA.

[188] Sørensen, Torben, Fan, Zhun, and Conrad, Finn. (2005), "Two Mechatronic Projects - an Agricultural Robot and a Flight Simulator Platform". In: Proceedings of 6th International Workshop on Research and Education in Mechatronics (REM) : June 30th - July 1st 2005, Annecy-FRANCE under the auspices of IEEE.

[189] Storga, Mario, Andreasen, Mogens Myrup, and Marjanovic, Dorian. (2005), "Towards a formal design model based on a genetic design model system". In: Proceedings of 15 International Conference on Engineering Design : Engineering Design and the Global Economy, Melbourne, Australia.

[190] Strøm-Tejsen, Peter, Wyon, David P., Lagercrantz, Love Per, and Fang, Lei. (2005), "Occupant evaluation of 7-hour exposures in a simulated aircraft cabin -Part 1: Optimum balance between fresh air supply and humidity". In: Proceedings of 10th International conference on indoor air quality and climate (Indoor Air 2005), September, Beijing.

[191] Strøm-Tejsen, Peter, Wyon, David P., Zukowska, Daria, Jama, Agnieszka, and Fang, Lei. (2005), "Occupant evaluation of 7-hour exposures in a simulated aircraft cabin - Part 2: Thermal effects". In: Proceedings of 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate - Indoor Air 2005, Beijing.

[192] Sumer, B. Mutlu, Bundgaard, Klavs, and Fredsøe, Jørgen. (2005), "Global and local scour at pile groups". In: Proceedings of 15th International Offshore and Polar Engineering Conference : Seoul, Korea, June 19-24, 2005 ; II.

[193] Sumer, B. Mutlu, Hatipoglu, Figen, and Fredsøe, Jørgen. (2005), "Sequence of soil liquefaction under waves". In: Proceedings of 15th International Offshore and Polar Engineering Conference.

[194] Sun, Yuexia, Fang, Lei, Wyon, David P., Lagercrantz, Love, and Strøm-Tejsen, Peter. (2005), "Experimental research on photocatalytic oxidation air purification technology applied to aircraft cabins". In: Proceedings of 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate - Indoor Air 2005, Beijing.

[195] Tamás, Gyöngyi, Weschler, Charles J., Toftum, Jørn, and Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005), "Influence of ozone-limonene reactions on perceived air quality". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005 : 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate, 2-9 September, Beijing, China ; 1.

[196] Thomsen, Jon Juel. (2005), "Slow high-frequency effects in mechanics: problems, solutions, potentials". In: Proceedings of Euromech Nonlinear Dynamics Conference, Eindhoven, Netherlands.

[197] Toftum, Jørn, Wyon, David, Svanekjær, Henrik, and Lantner, Alex. (2005), "Remote Performance Measurement (RPM) – A new, internet-based method for the measurement of occupant performance in office buildings". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing, China.

[198] Tvergaard, Viggo."Interface crack growth by void expansion mechanisms between ductile solid and elastic substrate". In: Proceedings of 11th International Conference on Fracture, Turin, Italy 20-25 March.

[199] Tvergaard, Viggo. (2005), "Cohesive zone model predictions of crack growth in isotropic or anisotropic elastic-plastic solids". In: Proceedings of 11th Int. Symposium on Plasticity and its Current Applications, Kauai. Hawaii, Jan. 2005.

[200] Tvergaard, Viggo. (2005), "Numerical studies of failure in ductile materials". In: Proceedings of Computational Plasticity VIII, Barcelona 2005.

[201] Walther, Jens Honore and Koumoutsakos, P. (2005), "Numerical Simulation of Nano-, Meso, Macro- and Multiscale Fluid Dynamics". In: Proceedings of Journal of Structural Mechanics : Special Issue for the 18the Nordic Seminar on Computational Mechanics, Helsinki.

[202] Wan, M. P., Chao, C. Y. H., and Fang, Lei. (2005), "Transmission Characteristics of Passenger-Exhaled Droplets in a Simulated Air-Cabin Environment". In: Proceedings of International Conference of Indoor Air Quality.

[203] Wang, Benlong, Liu, Hua, and Madsen, Per A. (2005), "Interactions between surface water waves and sea bed undulations by Boussinesq equations". In: Proceedings of Third International Conference on Asian and Pacific Coasts (APAC).

[204] Wang, Pan, Fan, Zhun, Li, Youfeng, and Feng, Shan. (2005), "Sequential

Bayesian Learning for Modular Neural Networks". In: Proceedings of International Symposium on Neural Networks (ISNN2005).

[205] Wargocki, Pawel, Wyon, David, Matysiak, B., and Irgens, S. (2005), "The effects of classroom air temperature and outdoor air supply rate on performance of school work by children". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, The 10th International Conference on Indoor Air Quality and Climate, Beijing, China.

[206] Wargocki, Pawel, Wyon, David, Jark, L., and Schaub-Hansen, M. (2005), "The effects of outdoor air supply rates in classrooms on the performance of schoolwork by children". In: Proceedings of Proceedings of CLIMA 2005, Lausanne, Switzerland.

[207] Watanabe, Flavio Yukio and Santos, Ilmar. (2005), "Stability Analysis of a Flexible Rotor Supported by Passively or Actively Lubricated Hybrid Multirecess Journal Bearing". In: Proceedings of XI International Conference on Dynamic Problems in Mechanics, Ouro Preto, Brazil.

[208] Wisthaler, A., Weschler, Charles J., Wyon, David, Wargocki, Pawel, Hansel, A., and Mark, D. T. (2005), "PTR-MS measurements in indoor environments". In: Proceedings of 2nd International Conference on Proton Transfer Reaction Mass Spectrometry and Its Applications, Contributions, Institut für Ionenphysik, Innsbruck, Austria.

[209] Yamada, Yasuhira, Endo, Hisayoshi, and Pedersen, Preben Terndrup. (2005), "Numerical Study on the Effect of Buffer Bow Structure in Ship-to-ship Collisions". In: Proceedings of 15th International Offshore and Polar Engineering Conference (ISOPE) Seoul, Korea, June 19 - 24, Seoul, Korea June 19 - 24.

[210] Yoon, Gil Ho, Joung, Young Soo, and Kim, Yoon Young. (2005), "Optimal Layout Design using the Element Connectivity Parameterization Method: Application to Three Dimensional Geometrical Nonlinear Structures". In: Proceedings of 6th World Congress on Structural and Multidisciplinary Optimization, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.

[211] Zukowska, Daria, Strøm-Tejsen, Peter, Jama, Agnieszka, and Wyon, David P. (2005), "Correlation between subjective assessments of local thermal discomfort and thermal manikin measurements in a simulated aircraft cabin". In: Proceedings of International Conference on Energy Efficient Technologies in Indoor Environment, Gliwice, Poland.

Articles in international conference proceedings without referee

[212] Andersen, Stig Kildegård, Carlsen, Henrik, and Thomsen, Per Grove. (2005), "Preliminary results from a numerical study on the appendix gap losses in a Stirling engine". In: Proceedings of 12th International Stirling Engine Conference and Technology Exhibition, Duham University, UK.

[212a] Carlsen, H. (2005), "Stirling engines for biomass - what is the problem?" Invited keynote lecture, Dr. Khamid Mahkamov (ed.), Proceedings of the 12th International Stirling Engine Conference, Durham (UK), 7 - 9 Sept. 2005

[212b] Marinitsch, G., Carlsen, H., Bovin, J. K. and Obernberger, I. (2005), "Development of a hot heat exchanger and a cleaning system for a 35 kW hermetic four cylinder Stirling engine for solid biomass fuels", Dr. Khamid Mahkamov (ed.), Proceedings of the 12th International Stirling Engine Conference, Durham (UK), 7 - 9 Sept. 2005

[213] Cermak, Radim and Melikov, Arsen Krikor. (2005) "Air quality and thermal comfort in room with underfloor, displacement and mixing ventilation". In: Proceeding of Indoor Air 2005.

[214] Fan, Zhun, Andreasen, Mogens Myrup, Wang, Jiachuan, Goodman, Erik, and Hein, Lars. (2005), "Towards an evolvable chromosome model for interactive computer design support". In: Proceedings of 15th International Conference on Engineering Design (ICED).

[215] Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005) "Improving human health, productivity and learning by upgrading indoor air quality". In: Proceedings of Third International Conference Healthy Buildings, Sofia, Bulgaria.

[216] Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005) "Improve indoor air and energy". In: Proceedings of International Conference "Energy Efficient Technologies in Indoor Environment" : Book of Abstracts, Silesian University of Technology, Gliwice, Poland.

[217] Fanger, Povl Ole. (2005) "Improving human productivity, learning and health by upgrading indoor air quality". In: Proceedings of James H. (Jimmy) Belfer Memorial Symposium on Control of the Indoor Air Quality for Improving Human Well-being, Comfort and Productivity, Faculty of Mechanical Engineering, TECHNION-Israel Institute of Technology.

[218] Friis-Hansen, Peter, Houbak, Niels, and Klit, Peder. (2005) "EVALUATION OF COURSE EVALUATIONS". In: Proceedings of International CDIO Conference



and Collaborators' Meeting : Queen's University, Kingston, Ontario, Canada ; CD, Kingston, Canada.

[219] Fuhrman, David R., Madsen, Per A. and Bingham, H.B. (2005), "A numerical study of lowest-order short-crested water wave instabilities". In: Proceedings of the International Symposium of Topical Problems of Nonlinear Wave Physics : Nonlinear Phenomena in Environmental Research (NWP-3), St. Petersburg - Nizhny Novgorod, Russia.

[220] Gong, Nan, Melikov, Arsen Krikor, Wyon, David, Sekhar, S. C., and Cheong, D. K. W. (2005) "Human perception to local air movement and optimal air velocity range for local air movement in the Tropics". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing.

[221] Hansen, Martin Otto Laver. (2005), "Description of wind ressource measurements at Sarfannguaq and general reflections concerning use of wind energy in Greenland". In: Proceedings of Energy-efficient building, April 12-14, Sisimiut, Greenland,

[222] Hindsgaul, Claus. (2005) "Particle Distribution in a Fixed Bed Down Draft Wood Gasifier". In: Proceedings of 14th European Conference and Exhibition: Biomass for Energy, Industry and Climate Protection, Paris, France.

[223] Hindsgaul, Claus. (2005), "The viking Gasifier". In: Proceedings of Strom und Värme aus biogenen Festbrennstoffen : VDI-Berichte ; 1891, Salzburg, Austria.

[224] Houbak, Niels and Klit, Peder. (2005), "MECHANICAL ENGINEERING CURRICULUM AT DTU AND THE APPLICATION OF CDIO IN FIRST YEAR COURSES". In: Proceedings of CDIO INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE AND COLLABORATORS' MEETING, QUEEN'S UNIVERSITY, Kingston, Ontario, Canada.

[225] Jakub, Kolarik, Olesen, Bjarne W., and Toftum, Jørn. (2005) "Human thermal comfort in environments with moderately drifting operative temperatures – state of the art and current research". In: Proceedings of Energy Efficient Technologies in Indoor Environment, Gliwice, Poland.

[225a] Jensen, J.O., Li, Q., Pan, C., Vestbø, A.P., Mortensen, K., Petersen, N.H., Sørensen, C.L., Clausen, T.N., Schramm, J. and Bjerrum, N.J.. (2005), "Recent Progress in High Temperature PEM Fuel Cell and the Possible Utilization of the Excess Heat for Fuel Processing". In: Proceedings of The 2nd European Hydrogen Energy Conference, Zaragoza, Spain, November 2005.

[226] Knudsen, G. L. and Melikov, Arsen Krikor. (2005) "Human response to individually controlled environment". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing.

[227] Madsen, Per A. and Fuhrman, David R. (2005), "Third-order theory for bi-directional bi-chromatic water waves". In: Proceedings of the International Symposium on Topical Problems of Nonlinear Wave Physics : Nonlinear Phenomena in Environmental Research, St. Petersburg-Nizhny Novgorod, Russia.

[228] Deleted

86

[229] Matzen, Detlef, Tan, Adrian, and Andreasen, Mogens Myrup. (2005), "Product/ Service-Systems: Proposal for models and terminology". In: Proceedings of Design for X : Beiträge zum 16. Symposium, Neukirchen, Germany.

[230] Naydenov, Kiril Georgiev, Sundell, Jan, Melikov, Arsen Krikor, Popov, A., Bornehag, Carl Gustaf, and Stankov, Peter. (2005) "The home environment and allergies among Bulgarian children". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing.

[231] Nielsen, P. V., Hyldgaard, C. E., Melikov, Arsen Krikor, Andersen, H., and Soennichsen, M. (2005) "Personal exposure between people in a room ventilated by textile terminals - with and without personalized ventilation". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, Beijing.

[232] Olesen, Bjarne W. (2005) "Lohnt es sich in ein gutes Raumklima zu investieren? Raumklima-Behaglichkeit-Arbetisleistung". In: Proceedings of Deutsche Kälte-Klima-Tagung, congress, Wüttzburg 2005.

[233] Popiolek, Z. and Melikov, Arsen Krikor. (2005) "A bench mark database and validation method for CFD predictions of airflow in a room". In: Proceedings of Indoor Air 2005, 4-9 September.

[234] Skorek, A., Wargocki, Pawel, and Famula, B. (2005) "Comparison of different methods for quantifying indoor air quality based on the study on the influence of the photocatalytic air cleaning on the air quality in the office polluted by typical building materials". In: Proceedings of the International Conference on Energy Efficient Technologies in Indoor Environment, Silesian University of Technology, Gliwice, Poland.

[235] Schramm, Jesper, Bang-Møller, Christian, Mortensen, Henrik H., Clausen, Lasse Røngård, and Vium, Johan Å. H. (2005) "Mechatronics Team Design of DTU Eco Cars". In: Proceedings of Mechatronics Day, Technical University of Denmark, 2005, Technical University of Denmark, Mechatronics Association, Copenhagen, 2005.

[236] Toftum, Jørn, Lantner, Alex, and Svanekjær, Henrik. (2005) "Intervention studies with remote measurement of occupant comfort, health and performance".



In: Proceedings of International Conference on Environmental Ergonomics, Ystad, Sweden.

[237] Wargocki, Pawel. (2005) "High indoor air quality improves office work and provides economic benefits". In: Proceeding of the 11th International Conference on Environmental Ergonomics XI, Ystad, Sweden.

[238] Wargocki, Pawel. (2005) "Measurements of perceived air quality". In: Proceedings of the International Conference on Energy Efficient Technologies in Indoor Environment, Silesian University of Technology, Gliwice, Poland.

[239] Watanabe, S., Melikov, Arsen Krikor, and Knudsen, A. K. (2005), "Evaluation of an individually controlled environment by means of a breathing thermal manikin". In: Proceedings of International Conference on Human-Environment System, Japan.

Books

[240] Bernd, Schäppi, Mogens Myrup Andreasen, Manfred, Kirchgeorg and Franz-Josef Redemacher. (2005), *Handbuch Produktentwicklung*. Carl Hanser Verlag, 2005.

[241] Ditlevsen, Ove Dalager, Henrik Madsen and He Jun. (2005), *Structural Reliability Methods* - Shanhai: Tongji University Press, 2005.

Chapters in books

[242] Ahmed, Saeema, Rob Bracewell, and Sanghee Kim. Engineering Knowledge Management. (2005), In *Engineering Design - Theory and Practice : A Symposium in Honour of Ken Wallace*. Kall-Kwik, 2005.

[243] Ahrenfeldt, Jesper. (2005), CO and PAH emissions from engines operating on producer gas. BTG biomass tecnology group, 2005.

[244] Andreasen, Mogens Myrup. (2005), Vorgehensmodelle und Prozesse für die Entwicklung von Produkten und Dienstleistungen. In *Handbuch Produktentwicklung.* Carl Hanser Verlag, 2005.

[245] Andreasen, Mogens Myrup. (2005), Concurrent Engineering - effiziente Integration der Aufgaben in Entwicklungsprozess. In *Handbuch Produktentwicklung*. Carl Hanser Verlag, 2005. [246] Berggreen, Carl Christian and Brian Hayman. (2005), Damage Mechanisms and Damage Assessment. In *Theory and Applications of Sandwich Structures*.

[247] Berggreen, Carl Christian. Fracture Modelling. (2005), In: *Theory and Applications of Sandwich Structures.*

[248] Blessing, Lucienne and Mogens Myrup Andreasen. (2005), Teaching engineering design research. In *Engineering Design. Theory and practice : A symposium in honuor of Ken Wallace.* Engineering Design Centre, University of Cambridge, 2005.

[249] Conrad, Finn. (2005), Development of a novel water hydraulic vane actuator applied for control of a two-links test manipulator. In *POWER TRANSMISSION AND MOTION CONTROL.* John Wiley &Sons, Ltd, 2005.

[250] Conrad, Finn. (2005), Water Hydraulic Systems. In *Development of a novel water hydraulic vane actuator applied for control of a two-links test manipulator.* John Wiley and Sons, Ltd, 2005.

[251] Fan, Zhun, Jiachuan Wang, and Erik Goodman. (2005), Exploring Open-Ended Design Space of Mechatronic Systems. In *Cutting Edge Robotics.* 2005.

[252] Kaczmarczyk, Jan and Arsen Krikor Melikov. (2005), Metody testowania osobistej wentylacji. In *Energooszczedne ksztaltowanie srodowiska wewnertrzneg*: *Metody testowania osobistej wentylacji.*

[253] Melikov, Arsen Krikor. (2005), Wymagania stawiane srodowisku wewnetrznemu I jego ocean In: *Energooszczedne kształtowanie srodowiska wewnetrzneg : Wymagania stawiane srodowisku wewnetrznemu I jego ocean*.

[254] Mortensen, Niels Henrik and Ulf Harlou. (2005), Multi-Produkt-Entwicklung - praxisorientierte Werkzeuge und praktische Erfarungen. In *Handbuch Produktentwicklung.* Carl Hanser Verlag, 2005.

[255] Wallace, Ken M., Saeema Ahmed, and Rob Bracewell. (2005), Engineering Knowledge Management. In *Design Process Improvement : A Review of Current Practice*.Springer-Verlag, 2005.

88

Management & Board

Head of Department Preben Terndrup Pedersen

Head of Administration Ib Misfeldt

Head of Education Peder Klit

Head of Engineering Design Lars Hein

Head of Solid Mechanics Viggo Tvergaard

Head of Indoor Environment Geo Clausen

Head of Fluid Mechanics Jens Nørkær Sørensen

Head of Coastal, Maritime and Structural Engineering Poul Andersen

Head of Energy Engineering Henrik Carlsen

Advisory Board

Ole Gunnerskov

Karsten Okholm Larsen

Leif Kristian Nielsen

Peter Sunn Pedersen

Vagn Rosenkilde



MEK

Department of Mechanical Engineering Technical University of Denmark

Nils Koppels Allé DTU - Building 403 DK-2800 Kgs. Lyngby Denmark

T: +45 45 25 19 60 W: www.mek.dtu.dk E: Info@mek.dtu.dk